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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOIIT

To the Members of Delanco Realtors Ptivate Limited

Repott on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

Vfe have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Delanco Realtors private Limited (,.the
Company'), which comprise the Balance sheet as at N{arch 31.,2025, t1le Statement of ptofit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Florv Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significaot accounting policies and other explanatory inforrnation.

In our opinion and to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Frnancial statements grve the infomration required by the Companies Act,2013 (,,the
Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair vierv in confonniq'rvith the accounting pdnciples
generally accepted in India, of the state of affais of the Company as ar Nlarch 31.,2025, its loss includurg
other comprehensi.i'e income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Staodards on Audrilng
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Acl Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibiliues for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report' We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics'issued by the Institute
of Chartered .\ccountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements undet the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
out other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our aud.it
opinion on the Ind AS Frnancial statements.

Infotmation Othet than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
infonnation comprises the infonnation included il the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereo[.

Our opinion on dre Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection rvrth our audit of the Ind AS financial sratements, our responsibiliti,- is to read the otler
inforrnation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a rnaterhl misstatement of this other
inforrnation, \r/e are tequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statemerrts

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in secrion 13a(5) of theActwith
resPect to the PreParation of these Ind AS hnancial statements that give a tlxe and fair vierv of the
frnancial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accotdance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inctuaing
the Indian Accounting Standards (nd AS) specified under section 133 of the,Act read rvith [the
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companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended]. 'rhis responsibiliry also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act fior safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other ir:regularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance oi adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complete.r.., of the accounting records, relevant to the
oreparation and ptesentation of the Ind AS hnancial statements that give , *. ,id fair ,riew and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In pteparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compa.y,s
abiJity to continue as a goi'g concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going .-oo..rg and using
the going concern basis of accoun'ing unless management either intends to liquiJate-the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Ditectors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

Our obiectives are to obtain teasonable asswance about whethet the Ind AS Frnancial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor,s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accotdance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Xlisstatements
can arise from fraud or error and ate considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users .taken on the basis of th"r. Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accotdance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' Identi4' and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a matenal misstatement resulting from ftaud is higher than for orr. r.ioltiog from error, as fraud ma!
involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

' Obtain an uoderstanding of intetnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 1a3(3)(i) of the Act, -. i." also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal fmancial controls system in
place and the opera.:ng effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going coocerr: basis of accouoting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mateial rrocertainry exists related to events or
conditions that may cast signifi.cant doubt on the Company's abiliq' to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainq' exists, we are required to draw attention in ori ouditor,s report
to the related disclosures in the finao&l statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modif!
out opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the dut. of o.r, auditor,s
report' However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structwe and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represeot the undedying transactio.s a'd
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with gorrernance regarding, alnong other lnatters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit frndings, io.ludirrg .o1, .igr,ifi.unt deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.



we also provide those chatged with govemance with a statement that v-e have complied with relevant
ethical tequirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatilonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appliiable, related
safeguards.

Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1' As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 743 of th" A.t, we give in the
"Annexute A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and,4 of the Order.

2. As requfued by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reporr that:

(^) )v" 6rr'. 36t'ght and obtained all the inforrnation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the pulposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proPer books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profrt and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of -hanges in Equiry dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Frnancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (I.rdian Accounting Standlrds) Rules,
201,5, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,,2025 taket
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiFred as on l\'Iatch 37,2025
ftom being appointed as a director in terrns of Section 1,61 e) of the ,tct;

(D !7ith tespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over Frnancial reporting of the
Company wit-h refetence to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveress of
such contols, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report;

(g) The provision of section 797 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company
for the yeat ended Nfarch 37't 2025.

(h) With resPect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201,4,as amended L oru opioion and to the
best of out information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed impact of pending litigatious in its financial position in Ind AS
Finaocial statements - refer note 35 to the hnancial statements.

n. The Company did not have any long-term contracts inclucling derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There urere no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

lv,

4 The Nlanagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have belen advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or shur" prerrlium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entiry, including forergn entiry
("Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or1th.r.iir., th26
the Intermediary shall, rvhether, directly or indirectly lend or invest ii other persons or
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entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (.Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or ptovide any guarantee, securify or the like on behalf "f ifr" Ultimate
Benefrciaries;

b) The N:lanagement has represented, that, to the best of its knoqdedge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregare) havJbeen received by the
Company from any Derson or entity, including foriign entity ('Funding parties,), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or olherorise, that the-Company shall,
whether, direcdy or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities idenuhed rn any
manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Funding Parry ("Ultimate Beneficiaries,) or
provide any guarantee, securiry or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

.) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate rn
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused o, to b.-li.rr. that the
representations under sub-clause (r) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain arry mateialmisstatement.

v. The company has not paid ot declared any dividend during the year, accordingly the
provision of section 123 of the Act are not applicable to the .*p*y.

vi. The Company has used a third party operated accounting software for maintaining its
books of account, based on examinatioo of service organisation controls report (S'OC
report), we noted that the audit ttail featute of the said software was enabled and operated
thtoughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Furthet, during
the course of our audit, based on the examination of such report, we did not come across
any instance of audit trail fearure being tarnpered with. Additionally, based on
examination of SOC report, the audit trail in respect of such software has been recorded
and preserved in fuIl compliance with the requirements of section 128(5) of the
Companies .\ct, 2013, il respect of the Frnancial year ended Nlarch 3't,2025. Further, in
respect of the financial years ended N{arch 31,2024, in the absence of SOC report for the
period from April 1,,2023 to December 31,2023, we are unable to assess whether the
audit uail has been preserved as per the statutory tequirements for record retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered

ARTERED\.7
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Ai Y */
Partner
Nlembership No. 089
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Date: 01. /05 /2025
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"Annexute A" to the Auditotts Repott of even date to the members of Delanco Realtors Private
Limited, on the Ind AS financial statements fot the year ended on March 3l,z\zs.
Based on the audit procedutes performed for the pu{pose of expressing an opinion on the true and fair
view of the Ind AS Frnancial statements of the company and considering the information and explanations
given to us and books of accounts and other records provided to us during the norrnal course of audit, we
hereby report that: -

1) In respect of Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, according to
information, explanations and representations given to us

.) Since thete is no immovable property in the company, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (c) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

d) Since the Company does not have any Property, Plant and Eqrripment (including rights of Use
Assets) or both, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (d) of the order is not applicable to the Company

e) Accordiog to information & explanations and representations given to us by the management, no
ptoceedings has been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
properry under Benami Transactions (?rohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

^) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the inventory has

been physical verified by the management at reasonable inten'al dunng the year. In our
opinion, the procedures of physical verification of Inventories followed by management are

reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business. No
disctepancies of 700/o or more in aggregate for each class of inventory has been noticed

b) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of { 5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time
during the yeat, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets

and hence reporting under clause 3(4(b) of the Ordet is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation given to us, during the year the Company has not
provided any secudty orguarantee orgranted any loans or advances in the nature ofloans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms and limited liability partnetships or other parties covered.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (*) (r) to (f) of the order are not appJicable to the
Company.

The company has not advanced loans to directors/to a compaoy in which the director is interested
to which provisions of the section 185 of the companies act 2013 apply and hence no commenred
upon. Loans, investrnents, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 186
of the companies act, 201,3 are applicable have been complied with by the company

Lccording to the information & explanation given to us, Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

Ifaintenance of cost records has not been specifred by the CenEal Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2073 for the business activities caried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting undet clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

n)

lii)

,9

I

vi)

a) Since the Company does not have any Property, Plant and Eqrripment, hence reporting under
clause 3 (, (^) (A) of the order is not applicable to the company.

b) Since the Company does not have any intangible assets, hence reporting under clause 3 (r) (a) (B) of
the order is not applicable to the company

,a:/- -i(
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lx)

"")

"iii)

I

In respect of statutory dues,

4 According to the tecords of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statuto{y dues including provident fund, employees' state imoi^rr.{ income-tax, sales-
tax,_service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations Eliven to us, flo undisputed amounts payable in
resPect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax
and cess u/ere outstanding, as at N{atch 31,2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b) According to the records and the information and the explanation given to us, the company does
nothave any disputed dues as on l\'Iarch 37,2025 in respect of goods and service tax, provident
fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, dufy of customs, dury of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues.

According to the inforrnation & explanation given to us, there u/ere no transactions relating to
previously untecorded income that have been sutrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

4 According to the inforrnation & explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information & explanatioo given to us, the Company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial instirution or government authodty.

c) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not taken any term loan
durng the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(i")G) of the Order is not applicable.

.) According to the information & explanation given to us, Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventufes.

0 According to the information & explanation given to us, Company has not raised any loans on
pledge of securities held by its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates and hence reporting on
clause 3(x)(f) of the Order is not app)icable.

4 -{ccording to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not raised money by
rvay of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instmments). Accord.ingly, the
provision of clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable.

b) Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible
debentures. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3G)(b) of the oider is not applicable.

d) According to the information & explanation given to us, on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

*l
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x1i)

xiii)

x1)

(^) To the best of our knowledge and Accotding to the information & explanation given to us, no
fraud by the Company or 

^ny 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or ,.por"t d during the

year. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3Gr) (a) & (b) of the order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, no report undet sub-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditors f secretaial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Goveinment.

.) According to the inforrnation & explanation given to us, no rvhistle blower complaints has
been received during the year by company.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi company. Hence the provision of clause 3("n) (u) to (c) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

Accordirg to the information & explanations given to us, all transactions defined under Section
188 of the Act are in compliance with Section 188 and details of these transactions are proper\
disclosed in the Financial Statements. Further, Section '177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

*iv) According to the ioformation & explanations giveo to us, Company does not have an internal aud.it
system and is not required to have an internal audit system under provisions of Section 138 of the
1.r. a.se1d'ingly repotingunder clause 3 Gi") (a) and @) of the Order is not applicable to the
comPany.

xv) In our opinion the Company has not entered into any non-cash ttansactions with its Directors or
persoos connectedwith its directors as referred underprovisions of section 192 of the Companies
Acq 2013.

""i)
4 In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company

is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserves Bank of India Aci,
1934. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xvr) (a) of the order is not applicable to the
comPany.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause :(*"D(b) is not applicable to
the Company.

.) The Company is not a Core Iovestrnent Company as defined in regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. -{.ccotdingly, the requirement to report in clause 3(xvi)(c) is not
applicable to the Company.

d) The Group has one Core Investment Company as p,ut of the Group. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xv, (d) of the order is not applicable to the company.

*"ii) The Company has incurred cash losses dudng the financial year of Rs.550.90 Lakhs and Rs.437.62
Lakhs duriog the immediately preceding financial year.

""iii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the requircment to report on clause 3(*vltr) is applicable to the Company.

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 24 of the financial statement, ageing and
expected dates of realization of fioancial assets and payment of financial liabfities, other

ACCOUNTANTSI Iw



xxi)

information accompanying the filancial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and Nfanagement plans and based on our examination of the evidencJs.,pportirrg the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any *uteril ulcertainty.*ira, u,
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabiliries
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of oo."yeu. from the
balance sheet date. W'e, howevet, state that this is not an assurance as io the futrue viability of the
Company. $7e further state that out reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither glve any guatantee nor any assurance that all liabilities fallng due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Compa.r! as and when
they fall due.

According to the information & explanations given to us, company is not required to make any
expenditure under corporate social responsibiliq' under provision of sectio., 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx) (a) & @) of the order is not applicable to rhe company.

This clause of the order is applicable to consolidated financial statemenrs. The audit report under
refetence is on the standalone financial statemeots of the company. Consequently, clause (xxi) of
paragraph of the order is not applicable to the company.

xx)

Partner

Nfembership No.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered -{,ccountants //

./a.

CHARTEREDi\
NTAiiTS *

ICAI Firrrr Regn. No:010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date:01 /05/2025
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"Annexute - B" to the Auditorst Report

Repom on the Intetnal Financial Conttols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,20l3 ("the Act")

In coniunction with our audit of the Ind AS Frnancial starements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 37,2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over frnancial repoting of Delanco
Realtors Private Limited.

Management's Responsibility for Intetnal Financial Conmols

The Respective Boatd of Directors of the company, are responsible fot establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over fi:eancial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounrants of
India ("ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementarion and mainrenance of adequate
internal Frnancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conducr of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditots' Responsibility

Our tesponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal Frnancial controls over financial
reporting based on out audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal Frnancial controls, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Iodia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over Fmancial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacv of the internal
financial controls system over Frnancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting rncluded obtarmng an understanding of internal financizrl controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material rveakness exists, and testiag and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

W'e believe that the audit evidence'we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Intetnal Financial Controls Ovet Financial Reporting

A companv's internal fioancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assuraoce regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of tecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company'; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactiofls are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally acceptecl accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the companv are being rnade only in accordance ,r,-ith
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
tegarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a materj.al effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

&



lnhetent Limitations of Intetnal Financial Controls ovet Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal Frnancial controls over hnancial reporting, rncludrng the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or ftaud may occru and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to futute periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal Frnancial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls ovet financial reporting were operating
effectively as at Nfarch 3'1,2025, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on
-\udit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered

C HARTE R tLl
ACCOUNTAIiiS

Gupta *
Partner

Nlembership No.
ICAI Firm Regn. No:010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
D^te:07 /05/2025
uo ix" 
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DELq,NCO REALTORS PRTVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U70101HR2006rfC106163

Rcgd.()fficc: \[czzanincFltxrr, I)1,[;(latcsrr.lirscr,Rl]lock, I)l,lr(-in,l)hascIII,(iurugramIIltI22002 IN
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025

{in

I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Propern, plant and etluipment

@) Financial .\ssets

(i) ()ther financial assets

(c) Non-(lurrent trr asscts (\-ct)

(d) ()thcr non currcnt tssets

Current assets

(a) Intentoties

@) Financial assets

(i) 1'rade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash e<1uir-alents

(iii) Other bank balances

(ir) Otlret financial assets

(c) Other curent assets

Total Assets

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equiry
(a) Equity share capital

ft) Other equin

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Botrorvings

(ii) Trade payables

-Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

-Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities

(c) Other cunent liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

3

+

5

6

1.50

12.{o

401.08

9.t93.33

9.90

8.13

591.09

9.84

38.29

1.50

12.58

I 04.55

9,2-19.93

15.69

6.q
556.20

1 9.+.84

20.34

7

8

9

10

t1

12

10,265.86 10,162.03

t3

14

15

16

1.00

3,151.46

5,963.30

120.41

70.24

454. I 0

499.29

r.00

3,708.36

5,282.3 I

77 .71

253.05

351.16

+82.1 4

t7
18

10,265.86 10,162.03

Summan- of matcrial accounting policies

'I'hc accompanving flotes frrms an integral part of financial statement.

llased on ()ur rcport ofevcn datc attached.
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DEU.NCO REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U70101HR2006PTC106163

Itcgd. ( )tficc: \fczzaninc Iil<xrr, [)l-ti (]atcu'av'['ou'cr, R l]lock, I)l.l; (.in., Phasc IIl, (iurugram I tR ,122002 I\j
Statement of Profrt and Loss for the year ended March 37,2OZs

t9
20

105.56

60.41

294.78

309.72

I. Income

Revenue from operations
( )ther income

Total Income

II. Expenses

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others
Finance cost

Other expenses

Total Expenses

III. Loss before tax for the year (I-II)
IV. Tax expense
(lurrent trx
L)eterred'['ax

V.Loss after tax for the year (III-ff)

VI. Other comprehensive income
.\ i) Items that will oot be reclassifred to profit or loss

ii) Income tax relating to items that will.not be reclassified to profit or loss
[3 i)ltems that will be reclassified to protit or loss

ii)lncome tax relating to itcms that will be reclassiFred to profit or loss

Total comprehensive loss for the year (VI-Y)

VIL Eamings/(loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs, l0 per share)
Basic and diluted (t)

165.97 604.50

21

22

:-)

68.r6

+8.1.51

I 63.60

156.55

550.53

335.04

716.87 1,042.12

(ss0.e0) (437.62)

21

(ss0.e0) (437.62)

(ss0.90) (437.62't

25 (0.s7) (0.4s)

Summan of \[aterial .\ccounting Policics 2

I'he accompant'ing notes frrrms an integrral part of tinancial statement.

Ilased on our report of even date attached.
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DELANCO REALTORS PRTVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U70101HR2006PTC106163

Regd. ( )[hce: \lezzanine Floor, DLF Gatevu'ar- To.nver, R Block, DLF Cin-, Phase III, Gurugram HR 122002 IN
Cash flow statement for the year ended March llr20Zs

{in

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(I-oss) before tax from continuing operations
Net (loss)/profit before tax
Adiustment for :

Depreciation expense
Interest income on Fr-red deposits
Interest expense

lllowance / wnte offs of financial and non-financial assets and provisions
Liabilities no longer required written back
Operating (loss)/profrt before working capital changes

Adiustment for:
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in other Financial assets and currenrs assets
Decrease/(Increase) in loans and adrances
Increase/ (decrease) in trade pavables
Decrease in other currenr liabi.lities

Cash used in operations
Taxes re6rnded/(paid)
Net cash flow/(used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income on fi-xed deposits
Loan repaid br others
Proceeds/(Investment in Flxed Deposit
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds ftom short-term borrorvings
Interest paid (including TDS)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalenrs ar the l>eginning o[the vear
Cash and cash equir.alenrs ar the end o[ the rear
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

*Cash and cash equivalents Comprises of the following:
Balance rvith Banks

- In current accoutlrs \.irh scheduled banks
Cash and cash equivaleots at the end ofthe Year

297.ti 1,067.70

8.61

6.40

(.5s0.e0)

(37.61)
484.51

6.39
(21.31)

(431.62)

(2s.s3)
550.53

6.16
(284.19\

(118.91) (190.05)

56.60

(4.se)

(12e.48)
(4 00)

(116.24)

17.16

129.17

(1.03)

(127.00)
(3.01)

(3s.3s)
(1,077.21)

(299.46\ (1,304.48)

1..r1 3.21
(298.0s) (1,301.24)

37.02

(34.0s)

22.81,

295.00
(86.54)

2.97 231.27

681.00

(383.87)
1,490.00

(422.30)

8.-+3

For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the vear ended
March 31,2024

8.+-i 6.-+0

8..{3 6.40

lo:/

Particulars
For the year eaded

March 31,,Zir25
For the year ended

March 31'r20A

lk](no*rt*tI hccouli'+'

\*



DELANCO REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U70101HR2006PTC106163

Regd. Office: Mezzanrilc'e Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram HR 122002 IN
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 3l,2O2S

Other disclosures required by Ind-AS 7:

in Liabilities from actlvltles

1st April 2024

Proceeds ftom short term borrowrngs
Interest expenses (excluding interesr accrued but not due)
Interest Paid

Balance as on 31 March2025

5,6i9.87
680.99

484.61

lst April2023
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Interest expenses (excluding interest accrued but not due)
Interest Paid

Balance as on 31 March2024

4,001,.72

1,-+90.00

336.69
. /"oR 5-r\

- 5,619.87

(B) Changes in Liabilities arising from Investing activiries
()ther than those disclosed in Cash flou; statement, there is no non-cash mo\remenr in investing activities

Summan of \laterial -\ccounting Policies (refer note no. 2)

fhe accompanving notes forms an integrd part of financial statement.

Based on our report ofeven date attached.

For and on behalf of
A.RG & Co. LLP
lhartered

lFRli 010(r301\

Enrn

*

Partner

Ilembership No.: 089279

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 1,2025

For and on behalf of th, he board of directors of
Delanco Realtors Private Limited

ls

-Aq
Manpreet Singh
Director

DIN:0869879:

Sandhya Singla
Director
DIN:08893844

0"
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Particulats Curreat

Particularr Noa{urtent

Borrowings

Borrowiogs
Borowings

. /iRi R-\

- 6,401.60
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Delanco Realtors Private Limited
CIN No. U70101 HR2006PTC106163

Regd. Office: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF Gatervav Torver, R Block, DLF Cin, phase III, Gurugram HR
122002 IN

Notes to Financial Statements for the yeat ended SlMarch2025

t, Corporate information
Delanco Realtors Private Limited ('the Companr-) is engaged primarilr. in the business of real estare der.elopmenr.
The operations of the Companv span all aspects of real estate development, from the identiFrcation and acquisition
of land, to planning, execution, construction and marketing of proiects. The Company is also engaged in the business
of leasing and maintenance sen'ices rvhich are related to the overall development of real estate business. The
Compant'was incorporated on NIar' 20, 2006. The registered ofEce is situated at Ofhce: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF
Gatervav Torver, R Block, DLF Ciq,, Phase III, Gurugram HR 122002 IN.

The financial statements for the vear ended 31 Nlarch 2025 were authorised and approved by the Board of Dfuectors
on for issue on 01,.05.2025

2. Matedal accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone Frnancial statements ('Ftnancial statements) of the Companv have been prepared in accordance s,{th
the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS) as notified by Ntinistn' of Corporate Affairs
(N[CA) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015, as amended from time to t-ime and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

The standalone Ftnancial statements har.e been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generallv accepted in India. Further, the standalone Frnancial statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis excePt for certain financial assets, financial Iiabilities, derivative Frnancial instrurnents and share based
payments which are measured at fait values as explained in relevant accounting policies. The changes in accounting
policies are explained in note 2 (aa).

The standalone Frnancial statements are presented in Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, except
rvhen otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a) Current and non-current classification

The Companv Presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as curent rvhen it is:

. ExPected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cvcle.

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

. Expected to be realised within trvelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabilit\- for at least rw-elve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-cuffent.

.\ Iiabilirf is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating o-cle.

. It is held primarilr' for the purpose of trading.

. It is due to be settled within rrvelve months after the reporting period, or

' There is no uncondiuonal right to defer the settlement of the liabilin' for at least tn.ql.r"e nignths after the
reporting period.



Delanco Realtors Private Limited
CIN No. U70101HR200(rPTC106163

Regd. Office: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF Gatervat'Torver, R Block, DLF Citr-, Phase III, Gurugram HR
122002 IN

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lN.4.arch2025

The Companv classihes all other liabilities as non-current. Defered tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

The operating qcle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

b) Ptoperty, plant and equipment

Recogni tio n a n d i n i tial m eawre me n t

Properh,', plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Companl'had elected to measure all of its propert)-, plant and equipment at the previous G,{-\P carning
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of b.it gttg the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Anv trade discount and rebares
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carning amount or
recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, onlr when it is probable that furure economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Compant'. \Xhen signihcant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Companv depreciates them separatelv based on their specific useful [r.es. Likewise, ',vhen a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carning amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisFted. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit
or loss as incutred. The Companv identifies and determines cost of each component,/ part of the asset separatelv, if
the component/ part have a cost rvhich is significant to the total cost o[ the asset and has useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset.

Subxqaenl mea.tilrcmenl (depreciation and arcfu/ liaet)

Propertr'', plant and equipment are subsequendv measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation on properfi, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset category* Estimated useful
life

(in years)

Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

lrct,2013
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen'
Computers and data processing units

- Sen'ers and nerw'orks
- Desktops, laptops and other der.ices

Fumiture and Frxtures

OfFrce equipment
\'rehicles

20-60
10- 15

60

15

6

3

10

5

8-10

6

3

5-10
5

8-10

-



Delanco Realtors Private Limited
CIN No. U701C)l HR2006PTC10(r1(r3

Regd. Office: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewav Tower, R Block, DLF Cirv, Phase III, Gurugram HR
122002 rN

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31March2025

*In case of assets pertaining to Golf and CIub operations, the Company based on technical evaluation and
management estimate considers the useful life of the assets as belorv:

Asset category Useful life
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen'
Furniture and hxtures

20
10

5

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

De-reqqnition

An item of propertl, plant and equipment and any signiFrcant part initiallr recognised is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Anv gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference betrveen the net disposal proceeds and the carrl.ing amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of proht and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

c) Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital rvork-in-progtess and intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of
capital projects/intangible assets under development and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct
expenditure.

d) Investmentpropeties

Reqqni tio n a n d i nitial rzeavreme n t

Investment properties are ptoperties held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties
are measured initial\' at their cost of acquisiuon, including transaction costs. On transition to Ind AS, the Companl
had elected to measure all of its investment properties at the previous G,L\P carq'rng value (deemed cost). The cost
comprises purchase price, cost of replacing parts, borrorv'ing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directlr
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 'nvorking condition for the intended use. Anv trade discount and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. \\hen signiFrcant parts of the investment propern are required to be
replaced at inten'als, the Companl' depreciates them separatelv based on their speciFrc useful lives. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carning amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
rvhen it is probable rhat future economic benefits associated rvith the item will florv to the Companr'. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment propertr onl'r' rvhen there is a change in use. For a rransfer from
inrestment propert\ to ov/ner-occupied properF, the deemed cost For subsequent accounting is the carying r-alue
at the date ofchange in use.

Sabteqaent meawrcment (depredation and useful liwt)

Intestment properties are subsequenth'measured at cost less accumulated depreciati.rr-, 
^nd,Tccumulated 

impairment
Iosses. i[anv. Depreciation on inrestment properties is provided on the straight-line mEthrjd.o.'rlbr,the useful lives of
thc assets as toll<>s's:



Delanco Realtors Private Limited
CIN No. U70101HR2006PTC106163

Regd. Office: IUezzanine Floor, DLF Gatervay Torver, R Block, DLF Ciqv, Phase III, Gurugram HR
122002 IN

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March2025

Asset category Estimated
Useful life
(in years)

Estimated useful life as
per Schedule II to the
Companies Act,20Il

(in years)
Ofhce equipment*

Furnirure and Fr-xtures

5

5-10

)
10

x Apart from all the assets, the Companl,has developed commercial space (in addition to automated multi-level car
patking) over the land parcel received under the build, own, operate and transfer scheme of the public private
partnership (as mentioned in the intangrble assets polio' below) rvhich has been depreciated in the proportion in
which the acrual revenue received during the accounting )'ear bears to the projected revenue from such assets till the
end of concession period.

The residual values, useful Iives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adj us ted prospectivel-v.

Though the Compan), measures investment propert\ using cost based measurement, the fair r.alue of investment
propertv is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an
acciedited extemal independent valuer applving valuation model acceptable internationally.

De-recognition

Investment properties are de-recognised either when ther have been disposed of or when thev are permanendy
withdrarvn from use and no future economic beneFtt is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the catn ing amount of the asset is recopyrised in the statement o[ profit and loss in the period
of de-recognition.

e) Intangible assets

Recogn i tio n ar d i ni tial measureme n t
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. On transition to Ind AS, the Company had
elected to measure all of its rntangible assets at the previous G.\\P carningvalue (deemed cost). The cost comprises
purchase price, borrorving cost if capitabzaaon criteria are met and direcdl attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its rvorking condition for the intended use. Intemallv generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs,
ate not capitalised and the related expendirure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which
the expendirure is incurred.

The Companv has acquired exclusive usage rights for 30 r'ears under the build, own, operate and transfer scheme in
respect of properties developed as automated multilevel car parking and commercial space and classified them under
the "Intangible Assets - Right under build, own, operate and rransfer affangement".

S ubseq aenl m€aJuremeilt (anor'titation)

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if anv. 

r.._. :.

The cost of capitalized sofrrvare is amortized ove! a period o[ 5 vears from the dut" of ,trrfeg*iirition.
, 

.:1 
i,_; 

r: r r,
'I'he cost of usage rights is being amortised or-er the concession period in the proportion ih *5iif the iitual re\.enue
received during the accounting \-ear bears to the proiected retenue from such inrrrrgrblJ'essets till the end of
concession period. '- : 

,



Delanco Realtors Private Limited
CIN No. U70101 HR2006PTC106163

Regd. ()ffice: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF Gaterva\- Torver, R Block, DLF Cin., Phase III, Gurugram HR
122002 rN

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarch2015

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carning amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement o[ proht and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

0 Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries (including partnership firms), ioint ventutes and
associates

Investment in equiq instruments of subsidiaries, joint venrures and associates are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27
'Separate Financial Statements'. \\Il'rere the carning amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is assessed for reco'i'erabiliq- and in case of permanent diminution, provision for impairment is recorded
in statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carn'ing amount is charged or credited ro the Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Business combinations

The Companv applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the businesses which are
not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of anv non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Company elects tvhether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
'i'alue or at the proportionate share o[ the acquiree's identiFrable net assets. Acquisition-related cosrs are expensed as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identiFrable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date farr values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embody'ing
economic benefits is not probable. Horvever, the follou,ing assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabilides, and the assets or liabilities related to emplovee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Tax' and Ind AS 19 'Employee BeneFrts'
tespectivelv.

b) Potential tax effects of temporan differences and carn' fonvards of an acquiree rhat exist at the acquisition date
or arise as a result o[ the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Tax'.

.) Liabilities or equirr instruments related to share based pavment arrangements of the acquiree or share - based

Pa)ments arrangements of the Companv entered into to replace share-based pa)'ment arrangements of the
acquitee are measured in accordance u,rth Ind AS 102 'Share-based Par.ments'at the acquisition date.

d) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classiFred as held for sale in accordance vith Ind AS 105 T.{on-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations' are measured in accordance with that standard.

e) Reacquired rights are measured at a ralue determined on the basis of the remaining conrractual term of the
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renerval of the reacqurred right.

Anl contingent consideration to be transferred bl the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liabilin' that is a financial insrrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 109 'Financial Instruments', is measured at far value with changes in fair value recognised in starement of proht
and loss. IF the contingent consideration is not s,rthin the scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', it is measured
in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classifred as equiry is nor re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent setdement is accounted for within equin.

.t
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\\'hen the Companv acquites a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accotdance with the contracrual terms, economic circumstanc., 

"rrd 
p.rti.r.rr,

conditions as at the acquisition date.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, anv previouslv held equiq. interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and an,v resulting gain or loss is recognised in sratemenr of proFrt and loss or OCI, 

^. 
upprop.i^,..

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete bl the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Compan) reports prolisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adiusted through additional assets or liabilities are recognised, io refleci ne*
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, rvould har.e
affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Businer tombinations under tommon contro/
Business combinations involving entities or businesses under cofiunon control have been accounted for using the
pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying 

"rno.rrrtr.No adiustments have been made to reflect fair values, or to recognise an)' new assets or liabilities.

Proprry arquisitioru and buriner combinationt

\\here ProperB' is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considers the substance of the
assets and activities of the acquited entiry in determining whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a
business.

Whete such acquisitions are not judged to be an acquisition of a business, thev are not treated as business
combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entitt or assets and liabilities is allocated betu/een the
identifiable assets and liabilities (of the entin) based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date. Accordingly,
no goodwill or deferred tax arises.

h) [nventories

Land and plots other than area transferred to constructed properties at the commencement of construction are
valued at lower of cost/as re-valued on conversion to stock and net realisable value. Cost includes land (including
development rights and land under agteement to purchase) acquisition cost, borrow-ing cost if inventorisation
criteria are met, estimated internal development costs and external der.elopment charges and other directlr-
attributable costs.

Construction rvork-in-progress of constructed properties other than Special Economic Zone (SF,Z) projects
includes the cost o[ land (includrng development rights and land under agreements ro purchase), lnternal
development costs, extemal development charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowing cost if
inventorisation criteria are met, development,/ construction materials, and is valued at lorver of cost/estimated
cost and net realisable value.

a

a

a

a

In case of SEZ Proiects, construction rvork-in-progress of constructed properties include internal development
costs, external development charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowing cost if inventorisation criteiia are
met, development/construction materials, and is valued at lorver of cost/estimated cost and net realisable value.

DeveloPment rights represent amount paid under a€feement to purchase land/developmenr dghts and
bortor.ving cost incurred bt the Companv to acquire irrevocable and exclusir-e licenses/d..'.l,rp.r,.rrt ,rghts in
the identihed land and constructed properties, the acquisition of u,hich is either completed or is ar an 

^driurr.edstage.Thesearer.aluedatlowefofcostandnetrealisablevaIue.

Construction/dei'elopment material is valued at lorver of cosr and net realisable vatuq, Cost comprises 'fpurchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the ir.x-enrories to their presesl locaiion and concliuo'.

a
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o Stocks for maintenance facilities (including stores and spares) are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever
is lo',ver.

Cost is determined on weighted-average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinan' course of business less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessafl,'to make the sale.

i) Revenue ftom contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or sen'ices are transfeffed to the
customet at an amount that reflects the consideration to rvhich the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Companv has generallv concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
because it qpicallv controls the goods and sen'ices before transferring them to the customers.

The disclosures of significant accounting 
f 
udgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts

with customers are provided in nore 2.2(bb).

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contracrually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and is net of rebates
and discounts. The Companv assesses its revenue arrangements against speciFrc criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Companv has concluded that it is acting as a pnncipal in all of its revenue arrangemenrs.

Revenue is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extenr that it is probable that the economic beneFrts
rvill flow to the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliablv.
The Companr has afpled five step model as per Ind fS^itS T.er-enue from contract. *ith customers'to recogtise
revenue in the standalone financial statements. The Companr- satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following critena is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided bv the Companv's performance as the
Companv performs; or
b) The Companr''s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer contols as the asset is created or
enhanced; or
c) The Companv's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the entiw has
an enforceable right to pa!-ment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations rvhere anv of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at rvhich the performance obligation is satisFred.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on various conditions as included in the
contfacts w'ith cus tomers.

Point of Time:

lle t'e n u e 
. lro tn rc Lt l -e -t / Lt le p rof e c/.;

Revenue is recogrrised at the l)oint in -lirne rr'.r.t. sale of real estate units. including lan<1, plots, aparrrnents.
commercial units, dcveloPfitent rights including dcvelopr-nent agreements as and s'lren the .,rrt..rl p.r..-i 'n ro the
cust()mer

I n tn,ntL n ld l,n ; / o.f' oIt/u ) n i n.q ;o t I tzrtl



Delanco Realtors Private Limited
CIN No. U70101HR2006PTC106163

Regd. Office: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewa\. Tower, R Block, DLF Citv, Phase III, Gurugram HR
122002 IN

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarch2025

The incremental cost of obtaining a contract with a customer is recognised as an asset if company expects to recoyer
those costs subiect to other conditions of the standard are met. These costs are charged to it^t.-.rrt of profit and
loss in accordance w-ith the transfer of the propertv to the customer.

Over a period of time:

Revenue is recognised over period of time for following stream of re'enues:

Reue nue -fmn Co-deuelopme nt projectt

Co-development proiects where the Company is actrng as contractor, revenue is recognised in accordance with the
terms of the co-developer agreements. Under such contracts, assets created does not har.e an alternative use for the
company and the Companl' has an enforceable nght to pavment. The estimated project cost includes construcrion
cost, development and construction material, internal development cost, external development charges, borrowrng
cost and or.erheads ofsuch project.

The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodically and effect of an1. changes in such estimates is
recognized in the period such changes are determined. Horvever, rvhen the total profect cost is estimated to exceed
total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediately.

C o ns tructi o n a n d f t-oa t p ruje ctt

Construction and fit-out projects where the Companv is acting as contracror, revenue is recognised in accordance
with the terms of the construction agteements. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an alternatir,,e use
and the Company has an enforceable right to pavment. The estimated project cost includes construction cosr,
development and construction material and overheads of such project.

The Compan)'uses cost based input method for measuring progress for performance obligation satisfied over time.
Under this method, the Company recognises revenue in proportion to the actual project cosr incured as against the
total estimated proiect cost. The management reviervs and revises its measure of progress periodrcalll and are
considered as change in estimates and accordingl,r-, the effect of such changes in estimates is recognised prospectivelr.
in the penod in which such changes are determined. Horvever, rvhen the total project cost is est.i.mated to exceed
total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediatelv.

As the outcome of the contracts cannot be measured reliably during the eady stages of the project, contract revenue
is recognised on\' to the extent of costs incurred in the statement of profit and loss.

Reuenuefrm golf tvurse operationt

Income from golf course operations, capitation, spoirsorship etc. is fixed and recognised as per the management
agreement with the parties, as and rvhen Companv satisFtes performance obligation bv delivenng the promised goods
or sen ices as per contractual agreed teffns.

Rental and llainlenance innme

Revenue in respect of rental and maintenance sen'ices is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance w.-ith the terms
of the respective contract as and rvhen the Companv satisfies performance obligations bl delivering the sen ices as
per contracrual agreed terms.

Other operating income
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Income ftom forfeirure of properties and interest from banks and customers under agreements to sell is accounted
for on an accrual basis except in cases rvhere.ultimate collection is considered doubtfiil.

ii. Volume rebates and eady payment rebates

The C-ompanv provides move in rebates/ eadv pavment rebates/ dorvn payment rebates to rhe customers. Rebates
are offset against amounts payable by the customer and revenue to^ be recognised. To estimate the r.ariable
consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company estimates the expectei r.al r. of rebates that are likely to
be incurred in furure and recognises the revenue net of rebates and recognises the refund liabiliw for expected future
rebates.

iii. Contract balances

Contract ayelt

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfered to the customer. If the
Company performs bv transferting goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideradon or before
pa!'ment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trode rerviaablet

A receivable represents the Companv's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage
of time is required before parment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section 2-2 (u) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequenr measurement.

Conmn liabilitiet

A contract liabilin'is the obligation to transfer goods or sen'ices to a customer for w-hich the Companv has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the cusromer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or sen'ices to the customer, a contract liabiliq'is recognised when the pa)'ment is made
or the pal:ment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue rvhen the Companv
performs under the contract

D Costoftevenue

Coil of real utate pujectt

Cost of constructed properties other than SEZ projects, includes cost of land (including cost of development
rights/land under agteements to purchase), estimated internal development costs, .rt..r,rf der.elopment cliarges,
bouowing costs, overheads, construction costs and development/construction materials, which is charged to the
statement of profit and loss based on the tevenue recognized as explained in accounting policl. fo, r.rren.rJfrom real

estate projects above' in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made on
completion of the speciFrc project.

Cot of SEZ prujectt

Cost of constructed properties includes estimated internal developmenr costs, e\tern
overheads, borrowing cost, constrllction costs and de'r,elopment/construction materials.

al charges,
is charged to rhe

statement of profit and loss based on the te.r-enue recognized as explained in accounting forrretrnue from real
estate SE,Z projects abo'r-e, in cousonance rvith the concept of
on complerion of the specific projecr.

matching costs and rcvenlle t is made
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Cost o_f /and and plott

Cost of land and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisition cost, estimated internal development
costs and extemal development charges, which is charged to the statemint of profit and loss based on the percentage
of land/plotted area in respect of r.vhich revenue is recogrused as explained in accorrrting policy for re.-enue from
'Sale of land and plots', in consonance with the concept of matching .ost ,rrd re\renue. nrnal adjustment is made on
completion of the specific project.

Cut of deuekpnent rights

Cost of development rights includes proportionate development rights cost, borrou/ing costs and other related cost,
which is charged to statement of proFrt and loss as explained in aciounting policy foite"enue, in consonance with
the concept of matching cost and revenue.

k) Botrowing costs

Borrowing costs direcdy attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarill,
takes a substantial period of time to get readr for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrouring costs are charged to the statement of proFrt and loss as incurred. Borrouring costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrorving costs.

l) Taxes

Currenl income tax

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensir.e income or directlv in equin.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the 1'ear and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside
statement oIprofit and loss is recognized outside statement of proFrt and loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equin). Current tax items are recognised in corelation to the undedving transaction either in OCI or directll
in equiq'. Nlanagement periodicallv evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions rvhere appropnate.

In the situations rvhere one or more units/undertaking in the Companv are entided ro a rax holidav under the
Income-tax,\ct, 1961, no deferred tax (asset or liabilio) is recognized in respect of temporary differences rvhich
reverse during the tax holidav period, to the extent the concemed entitr-'s gross total income is subject to the
deduction during the tax holidav period. Deferred tax in respect of temporan differences which reverse after the tax
holidav period is recognized in the vear in rvhich the temporan- differences originate. Florvever, the Companv restricts
recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufflcient future taxable income will be available
against rvhich such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes. the temporan' differences
rvhich originate Ftst are considered to reverse Ftst.

Defemd tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liabilin' method on temporan differences berrveen the tax bases of assers and
liabilities and their carn'ing amounts for Frnancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deterred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporafi' differences, e\cepr:
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o In respect of taxable temPoran' differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures,'nvhen the timing of the reversal of the temporan'differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the tempofar\r differences rv'ill not re\:erse in the foreseeable furure

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporaq differences, the carn- forward of unused tax credits
and an\' unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporafl diffetences and the cam- fonvaid of unused rax crediis and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The car4'ing amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extenr that it is no
longer probable that sufFtcient taxable profit will be available to allorv all or part of the deferred tax asser to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable prohts rvill allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apph, in the year rvhen the asset
is realised or the liabiliw is setded, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that har.e been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of proht and loss is recognised outside statement of
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equin). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the undedl-ing uansaction either in OCI or direcdr in equitl'.

Defered tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legallv enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entin and the same taxation authorir]'.

Sales tax f value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurting expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax ,/ value added taxes/Goods and services tax paid,
except:

\\hen the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sen'ices is not recoverable from the taxation authorit), in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as

applicable

\{hen receirables and pavables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or par.able to, the taxation authori$' is included as part of receivables or
pavables in the balance sheet.

a

a

m) Foreign currency transactions

P- u n ;t io n u / a n d preie n ld I io n cil tr€ n r)

The standalone Frnancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('{) rvhich is also the functional and presentation
currencv of the Companr'.

T ra n uclio m a n d balan ce.r

Foreign cuffencv transactions are recorded in the functional currencr', b,v applving the exchang,e rate benveen the
functional currency and the foreign cuffenct' at the date of the transaction. . . - . 

r

Foreign currenct monetarl items outstanding at the balance sheet datc are converted to funcuonal currencv using
tl-re closing rate. Non-monetan'items denominated in a tbreign currenct rvhich are carried'at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.
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Exchange difflerences arising on setdement of monetaf items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different
from those at r.vhich thet, rvere initiallv recorded, are recognized in the statement olproFriand loss in the vear in
which the.r'arise.

n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Proaident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a deFrned benefit scheme. The Company makes conftibution to
staruto4' provident fund trust set up in accordance with the Emplolees' Provident Funds and Nliscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. The Companv has to meet the interest shortfall, if anv. Accordingll', the contribution paid or
pavable and the interest shortfall, ifanv, is recognised as an expense in the period in rvhich services are rendered by
the emplovee. If the contribution pavable to the scheme for sen'ice received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution alreadv paid, the deficit pa1'able to the scheme is recognized as a liabilin after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution alreadv paid exceeds the contribution due for sen'ices received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future pavment or a cash refund.

Crataitl'

Graruitt' is a post-emplol'ment benefit and is in the nature of a defined beneFrt plan. The liabiliry' recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of gaui6' is the present value of the defined beneFrt/obligation at the balance sheet date,
together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past sen'ice costs. The defined
benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent acruan'using the projected unit
credit method. This is based on standard rates of inflation, 5216: grorvth rate and mortalit\'. Discount factors are
determined close to each vear-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that have terms to marurin'
approsimating the terms of the related liabihtr'. Senice cost and net interest expense on the Companv's defined
beneFtt plan is included in statement of ptoFrt and loss. Acruarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of rhe
Iiabiliq' are included in other comprehensive income in the period in rvhich ther occur and are not reclassified to
statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Compennted ahence.t

Liabilin in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one ) ear from the
balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or
estimated value o[ beneitt expected to be availed bv the emplovees. Liabilin in respect of compensated absences
becoming due or expected to be availed more than one vear after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of
an actuarial valuation performed bv an independent actuart, using the projected unit credit mtjthod.

,\cruarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in acruarial assumptions are charged to statement
of profit and loss in the rear in rvhich such gains or losses are determined.

Pen.rion

Pension is a post-emplorment benefit and is in the narure of a deFrned benefit plan. The liabilin, recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of pension is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date,
together srth adfustments for unrecognised acruarial gains or losses and past sen'ice costs. lhe defined benefit

obligation is calculated at or near the balance sheet date bl an independent actuan' using the pro;ected unit credit
method. This is based on standard rates of infladon, salan' gros'th rate and mortalin'. Discount factors are
cletermined close to each vear-end b'r' reference to market r-ields on lio\-ernment boncls that have terrns to maturin'
approxirnating the terms oithe related liabilin. Sen-ice.,,.,,-,,, the-(-ompanr-'s defined benehtlplah is included in
etnprlovee beneFtts e\pense. Net interest erpense on the net deiined benefit liabilin' is includeci in hnance c<>srs.
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Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the [abilih' are included in other comprehensive income
in the period in rvhich they occur and are not reclassified to sratement of proFrt and loss in subsequent periods.

S hort-krm emplqfee beneJitt

Expense in respect of short-term benefits is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period
during which services are rendered b1. the emploree. Contribution made toward, ,,.rp..rrrrrrrution fund (funded bv
pavments to Life Insurance Colpomtion of India) is charged to statement of proht u.rd lorr on accrual basis.

o) Share based payments

Enplo1ee Stock Option Plan

The cost of equitl'-settled transactions is determined bv the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together rvith a corresponding increase in share-based payment
(SBP) resen'es in equiq', ol'er the period in rvhich the performance and/or sen'ice conditions are fulfilled in employee
beneltts expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equitv-settled transactions at each reporting date 

""tit itt"vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the
number of equitf instruments that will ultimatelv l,est. The expense or credit in the statement of proFrt and loss for
a period rePresents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and
is recognised in employee benefits expense. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received ate allocated to
share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with anv excess being recorded as securities premium.

Enployee Shadow Option Schene (cath vttled options)

Fair r.alue of cash setded options granted to emplovees under the Emplovee's Shadow Option Scheme is determined
on the basis of excess of the average market price, during the month before the reporting date, over the exercise
price of the shadow option. This fair value is expensed orer the vesting period with recognition of a coruesponding
liabilin. The liability is re-measured to fair value at each reporting date up to, and including the setlement date, with
changes in fair value recognised in employee beneFrts expense over the r.esting period.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Companv assesses whether there is anv indication based on internal/external factors, rhat
an asset mav be imparred. If anv such indication exists, the Companr estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recor.erable amount is determined for an indir.idual asser, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largelv independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. \\hen the carn ing
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is rvritten down to
its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories, is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash florvs are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of monev and the risks specihc to the asset. In
determining fairvalue less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identiFted, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated b\. r.aluation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicl,v traded companies or other available fair value indicarors.

The Companv bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasr calculation. These budgets and
forecast calculations generallv co\:er a period of fir'e vears. For longer periods, a long term grorvth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash florvs after the fifth vear.

/cn nRrt l rt
I rccout'ltiHii
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If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previouslr assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment los..es prer.iouslv
recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits wrth an
original maturig' of three months ot less, u'hich are subject to an insigniFrcant risk of changes in value.

For the PurPose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as deFrned above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integtal part of the
Companl"s cash management.

r) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders

The Companv recognises a liabiliw to make cash or non-cash distributions to equitl'holders when the distriburion
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Companv. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised rvhen it is approved b1' 6r. shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directlv
in equirl'.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measuremenr
recognised direcdf in equiq'.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, anv difference betrveen the cam'ing amount of the liabilifi and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

s) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized onl1, rvhen there is a present obligation (egal or constructive), as a result of past e\-ents,
and it is probable that an outflou/ of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. Pror.isions are discounted
to their present values, where the time value of money is material, using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks speciEc to the liabilin'. \\hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

\\hen the Companv expects some or all of a pror.ision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a

separate asset, but onlv rvhen the reimbursement is r,'irruallv certairi. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of anv reimbursement.

Onerous conttacts

If the Companv has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured
as a provision. Horvever, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Companr recognises
anl impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under rvhich the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Companv cannot a\.oid
because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost o[ exiting from the contract,
rvhich is the lorver of the cost of fulhlling it and anl compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfrl it.

These estimates are revierved at each reporting date and adiusted to reflect the current best estimares.

Contingent liabilin is disclosed for: t" ,' 
u

i".,"l','''-i.,'



a

Delanco Realtors Private Limited
(,IN No. L-70101 HR2006l,TL10(t1(t3

Regd. Office: Nlezzanine Floor, DLF Gaterva\- Tower, R Block, DLF Ciq', Phase III, Gurugram HR
122002rN

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMatcir.2025

Possible obligations'nvhich will be confirmed onl,v bv future events not wholly within the conrrol of the Company
or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflov of resources will be required
to setde the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

a

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except rvhen realisation of income is virtuallv certain, related
asset is disclosed.

0 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conve)-s the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Companv applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except fot short-term leases
and leases of low-r'alue assets. The Companv recognises lease liabilities to make lease pavments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the undedr-ing assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the undedying
asset is available for use). fught-of-use assets are measured at cost, less anv accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and adjusted for an1'remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less anv lease incentives received. fught-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term as

follows:

Lease termAsset category
Land
Buildings 3-16 vears
Assets taken on lease for golf operations 6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Companr- at the end o[ the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful l-ife of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subfect to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2.2 (p) on impairment
o f non- financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Companl recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease pat'ments to be made over the lease term. fhe lease par-ments include fixed pavments (includrng in-substance
Ftxed pat'ments) less an'r- lease incentives receirable. r'ariable lease pavments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be patd under residual value guarantees. The lease pavments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonablv certain to be exercised bv the Companl and par,ments o[penalties for terminating the
lease. if the lease term reflects the Companr exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease par,ments rhat do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in rvhich the event or condition that triggers
the pavment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pavments, the Compan)' uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease

cornfflencelnent date because the interest rate imotcit in-tlre lease is not readilr-detenninable..\[ter t]re
commellcement date, the amoutrt o[ lease liabilirics is increased to ret'lect the accretion of interest and redr-rced frrr



The Companv applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of lorv-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be lo,nv value.
Lease pavments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Compant' does not transfer substantiallr, all the risks and rervards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carn ing amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as rei'enue in the period in rvhich ther are earned. Fit-out rental income is recognised in the
statement of proFrt and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classiFted as Frnance leases rvhen substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the
Companv to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under hnance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's
net irivestment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
penodic rate of rerurn on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

u) Financialinstruments

A Ftnancial instrument is anv contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabilin or equin'
instrument of another endn,.

1) Financial Assets

I nitial recognition and meaturemenl

Financial assets are classiFred, at initial recognition, as subsequentlt measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value through proFrt or loss.

The classiFrcation of ltnancial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash florv
characteristics and the Companr''s business model for managing them. \\ith the exception of trade teceivables that
do not contain a significant Frnancing component or for rvhich the Companv has applied the practical expedient, the
Companv initiallv measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through proFtt or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for rvhich the Companr has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind .\S I 15 'Revenue from contracts rvith customers'. Refer to the accounting policies in section
2.2 (i) 'Rerenue from contracts N.ith customers'.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs ro
grve rise to cash florvs that are 'solelv pavments of principal and interest (SPPD'on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an insrrumenr level.

The Compaur''s business model tbr managrng t-rnatrcial asbg.t^sleters to horv it manages its hnancial assets in order to
generate cash florvs. The business rnodel determines 

"'trgtlh5 
gach. florvs n.ill result from collecting conuacftral cash

fiot's. selling the financial assets ()r both. , 
'' 

l, 
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the lease paYments made. In addition, the car4 ing amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a mod.ification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease pavments (e.g., changes to future parments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of u., optio., to purchase
the undedving asser.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

1'
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S ubseq uent m ea.turcme nl

i. Financial assets carried at amoffised cost - a frnancial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

o Contractual terms of the asset give dse on speciFred dates to cash flows that are solely pay'ments of
principal and interest (SPPD on the principal amount outstanding.

After iniual measurement, such Frnancial assets are subsequendv measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

ii. Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Investmenrs in equitl'
instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS
27'Separate Financial Statements'.

iii. Investments in other equity instruments - Investments in equit)'instruments rvhich are held for trading
are classified as at fair value through proFrt or loss (FVTPL). For all other equiq instruments, the Company
makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument bf instrument basis, to classifi,' the
same either as at fairi'alue through other comprehensive income (tr\'OCD or fair value through proFtt or loss
(FVTPL). Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequentlv ransfered to statement
of proFrt and loss. Hou,evet, the Companr- transfers the cumulatir.e gain or loss rvithin equiq'. Dividend on
such investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss unless the dir.idend clearh represents a

recover\- of part of the cost of the inr.estment.

iv. Investments in mutual funds - Investments in murual funds are measured at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL).

v, Derivative instrument - The Companv holds derivative Frnancial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
exposure for underhing external commercial borrorvings (ECB). Derivatire financial instruments have been
accounted for at F\t-l-PL.

Fair value changes on instruments measured at F\.'[PL is recognised in the Statement of Proht and Loss unless the
Company has elected to measure such instrument at F-\'OCI. Fair value changes on instruments measured at FYOCI
are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequentlr reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

De-recognilion off nandal asxtt

A Frnancial asset (or, rvhere applicable, a part o[ a Ftnancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

pnmanlv derecognised (i.e. remored from the Companv's standalone balance sheet) rvhen:

o The rights to receir-e cash florvs from the asset haye expired, or
o The Companv has transferred its rights to receive cash flo"vs from the asset or has assumed an obligation to

pav the received cash flos.s in full without material delav to a third parfi- under a 'pass-through' arrangement;
and either (a) the Companv has transferred substantiallv all the risks and rervards of the asset, or (b) the
Companv has neither transferred nor retained substantiallv all the risks and rervards of the asset, but has

transferred control o[ the asset. - '
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Continuing invoh'ement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferted asset is measured at the lower of the
original carning amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Compan),could be requircd
to repaY.

I npainnen t of f na n cia/ assett

In accordance with Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', the Company'applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash florvs that the Companv expecrs to receive, discounted at the;riginal
effective interest rate, u,ith the tespective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash fliws,
the Companv is required to consider -

o All contractual terms of the Frnancial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the
ASSCtS.

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integml to the contractual
terms.

(i)Trade rcceiuablet

In respect of uade receivables, the Companv applies the simpliFred approach of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments',
which reqLrites measurement o[ loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
expected credit losses are the expected ctedit losses that result from all possible default events orer the expected life
of a Ftnancial instrument.

(ii) Other f nandal assett

In respect of its other financial assets, the Companv assesses if the credit risk on those Frnancial assets has increased
signihcantlv since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased signiFrcantly since initial recognition, the
Companv measures the loss allorvance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

\\hen makrng this assessment, the Companv uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, d1e Companl compares the risk of a default occurring on the Frnancial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available wirhout undue cosr or effort,
that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Companv assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased signiFrcantll since initial recognition if the hnancial asser is determined to
have lorv credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities

I nitia I recogni lio n a nd mearurem e n I

Financial liabilities ate classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through proFrt or loss, Ioans
and borrowings and pavables, net of directlr attributable transaction cosrs.

The Companr's Frnancial liabilities include trade and other pa1'ables, securitl- deposits, loans and borrowings and
other financial l-iabilities including bank overdrafts and fry!$ytg.uarantee contracrs.

,;', -', '

Subrequenl meltiuremenl : ,
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Subsequent to initial recognition, the measurement of f,rnancial liabilities depends on their classification, as descdbed
belo,nv:

I-oaw and borrowingt

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borowings are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of pro6t and loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated b,v taking into account any discount or

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

F i n a n da / ga ara n lee il n tra rfi

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a

loss it incurs because the speciFred pafi\' fails to make a pavment rvhen due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a Frnancial liabilin' at the time the guarantee is issued at
fait value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directlv attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequentlv,
the liabiliw is measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

D e -recognitio n oJ f na n da / liabi li ti u

A Frnancial l-iabilin'is de-recognised when the obligation under the habilin is discharged or cancelled or expires.
\\hen an existing Ftnancial liabilin'is replaced bv another from the same lender on substanriallv different terms, or
the terms of an existing liabilin ate substantiallv modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition oFthe original liabilifi'and the recognition of a nerv liabilin. The difference in the respectire carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3) Reclassifrcation of financial instruments

The Companl' determines classihcation of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassiFrcation is made for financial assets u/hich are equin' instruments and Frnancial liabilities. For
financial assets w-hich are debt instruments, a reclassiFrcation is made on\, if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes rvhich are significant
to the Companv's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the busrness model occurs
when the Companr, either begins or ceases to perform an activih' that is signiFrcant to its operations. If the Companv
reclassifies Frnancial assets, it applies the reclassiFtcation prospectivell from the reclassification date rvhich is rhe frst
dav of the immediateh' next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does nor restate
anv previouslv recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of financial insttuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currenth'enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

v) Fair value measurement

The Compan\-measures financial instruments such as derir-ative instruments etc at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair r-alue is the price that rvould be receir-ed to sell ari assetor paid to transttr a liabihn'in an orderh'transaction
benveen market participants at rhe measurement date. 'I'hs fair r.alue oi an asset or a liabilin' is measured using the
assumptions that market participants s'ould use t-hen,pi:icing the asset or liabilin'. assuming that market participants
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act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-hnancial asset takes into account a market
participant's abiliq' to generate economic beneFrts bv using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Companv uses valuation techniques that ate appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
ar.ailable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsen able inputs and minimising the use of
unobsen able inputs.

All assets and liabiliues for which fait value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are caregodsed within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lor,,'est level input that is signiFrcant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is direcdl' or indirectlv observable.

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for 
"vhich 

the lowest level input that is signiFrcant to the fair value measurement
is unobsen'able.

For assets and liabilities that are tecognised in the standalone Frnancial statements on a recurring basis, the Companv
determines whether transfers har.e occurted between levels in the hierarchv b1 re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is signihcant to the fair value measurement as a rvhole) at the end of each reporting period.

Extemal valuers are involved for valuation of signiFrcant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and
significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involr.ement of extemal r.aluers is decided upon annually bv
the management. Valuers are selected based on market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fatr value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, charactedstics and nsks of the asset or liabilin and the level of the fair r.alue hierarchl, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policv for fair value. Other fat value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes

a Disclosures for valuation methods, signiFrcant estimates and assumptions (note 4 and 36)

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchv (note 36).

Investment in unquoted equiq'shares (note 68).

Investment properties (note 4).

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36 and 37).

w) Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares and compulsorilv convertible debentures

i) Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

Optionallv cor:vertible redeemable preference shares issued br- rvhollr orvned subsidiaries are accounted as

investments carried at cost. In such instruments, onlv the subsidian'companies have the option to buv back and
drvidend rvill be completeh' discretionan' at the option of the subsidian'. The Companv will not har.e anr- legal or
contracnral right either in normal or in default scenario to require the subsidiaries to make pavment of principal or
interest as issuer has the right to convert the insrrument into equin'shares at anv time during its tenure. Amount is
fixed at upfront and conversion will be into fixed number of shares.

a

a

a

a

ii) Compulsorilv convertible debentures

r'-a.,P
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Compulsorill' conr-ertible debenrures issued by goup companies are accounted as Equin investment carried at Cost
based on the terms of the contract. These instruments are convertible into fixed number of equitr. shares within the
term stipulated in contract at the option of holder. Amount is fixed at upfront and conversion will be into Frxed
number of shares.

x) Convertible instruments

Conr-ertible instruments ate separated into liabilin' and equin' components based on the terms of the contract. On
issuance of the convertible instruments, the fair value of the liabilin- component is determined using a market rate

for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liabilin, measured at amortised
cost (net o[ transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equitl' since
conversion option meets Ind AS 32 'Financial Instruments Presentation'cdteria for Frxed to Frxed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equiq, net of associated income tax. The carrling amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent rears.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liabilin and equin components of the convertible instruments based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liabiliq- and equiq' components when the instruments are initially recognised.

y) Non-current assets held for sale
T'he Companr classiFres non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if ther carrying amounrs rvill be
recovered principallv through a salef distribution rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete
the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unLikelv that signiFrcant changes to the sale rvdl be made or that the
decision to sell rvill be withdrarvn. Nlanagement must be committed to the sale expected within one vear from the
date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the
exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met onlv when the assets
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject onlt' to terms that are usual and
customan' for sales/ distribution of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale G hghlv probable; and it will genuinely
be sold, not abandoned. The Companl treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highlv probable when:

o The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal gloup),
o An active prograrune to locate a bu\.er and complete the plan has been initiated,
o The asset (or disposal group) is being activelv marketed for sale at a price rhat is reasonable in relation to its

current fair value,
o The sale is expected to quali$ for recognition as a completed sale rvithin one vear from the date of

classification, and
o .\ctions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikeh' that signiFrcant changes to the plan will be

made or that the plan u'ill be with&arvn.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lo',r'er o[ their carn'ing amount.and the fair
ralue less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separatelr- in the balance sheet.

Properh, plant and e<luipment and intangible assets once classiFred as held for sale to owners are not depreciated or
amortised.

z) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated br di.'idiJg ,fri n", profit or loss for dre periocl attributable to ecluin-
shareholders (after deducung attributable taxes) br'.the s'eighted-ar'erage number of e<1uin' shares oursranding during

,/d;
{s{,,
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the period. The rveighted-average number of equitl' shares outstandrng during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equitl. shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net proflt or loss for the period attributable to equiq-
shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equin shares.

aa) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standatds

The Companl,applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginnrng on or after 1 April 2024, but do not have a material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of the
Compan1..

Ind AS ll6: Leases - The NICA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
2024, which amended Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liabiliq'in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabilin' arising in a sale and leaseback
tansaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise an)' amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind
AS 11(r.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of the Companv during the l.ear
lnd AS I l7: Instu'ance The Ntinist4' of Corporate Affairs OICA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Conrracts, r,ide
notiFrcation dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024,
rvhich is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.
Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comptehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement. presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts.
Ind AS 117 applies to all npes of insurance contracts, regardless of the npe of entities that issue them as rvell as to
certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a feu' scope exceptions rvill
applr,. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

' A speciFrc adaptation for contracts rvith direct participation features (the variable fee approach); and

'A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of tl,e Companl during the lear.

New and amended standatds, not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not vet effective as on the date.

bb) Significant management iudgement in applving accounting policies and estimation uncertaintl,

The preparation of tl,e Companrrs standalone Ftnancial statements requires management to make iudgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
related disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Lincertaintv about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the car$'ing amount of assets or liabilities affected in
furure periods.

Signifi cant management iudgements
The follos'rnu are signiticant management iudgements in applving the accountir.rg policies of the Cornpan\. that ha\-e
the most sisnificant effect on rhe standalone financial staternents.
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Rer,ugnition ('defened tdx ar.ret.t - The extent to rvhich deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probabilin' of the furure taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Eaaluation of inditator: for irnpairment of atset - The evaluation of applicabilifi of indicators o[ impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors lvhich could result in deterioration of recoverable amount
of the assets.

C/assilication o-f leaw - The Compan' enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer o[ orvnership of leased asset at end of lease term, Iessee's option to purchase and estimated
cetainE of exercise of such oPtion, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

Detemining the /ear term o-f tonlracfi with renewal and terruination options (Companv as lessee)- The Companv determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with anv periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonablv certain to be exercised, or anr periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonablv certain not to be exercised. The Companl has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating rvhether it is reasonablv certain rvhether or not
to exercise the opuon to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all reler.ant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances thar is within its control and affects its abiliq-
to exercise ot not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
impror.ements or signiFrcant customisation to the leased asset).

Inpairment oJfnandal atsefi - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed or.er expected life,
the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.
Proaiions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspecrs, the
Companv assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. Horvever, the acrual
furure outcome mav be different from this iudgement.

Reuenue fruru rvnlracb with ca$onerc- The Company has applied judgements that significantly affect the determination
of the amount and ti-i"g of revenue from contacts with customers.

Significant estimates

The ker- assumptions concerning the furure and other kev sources of estimation uncertainn' at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are
described belorv. The Companv based its assumptions and estimates on paramerers available when the standalone
financial statements vere prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about furure der.elopments, however,
mav change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are bevond the control of the Compant-. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions.nhen ther-occur.

l,et realiyable t'altre o.f-inrcntory' -The determination of net realisable ralue o[ inventon' involves estimates based on
prevailing market conditions, current prices and expected date of commencemenr and completion of the project, the
estimated furure selling price, cost to complete projects and selling cosr. The Companl also involves specialist to
perform valuations oI inventories, rvherer-er required.

LtxJa/ lim ol' depreiuble/anofiivbh dr-relr - Nlanagement reviervs its estimare o[ the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected uulin. of dre assers. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence.that mar change the utrliq' of assets.

l'duufion of int'etlmenl pru1>efi - Inr-estment propeitr iis. stated ar cosr. Hot,ever, as per Ind lS -10 'Investment
Propern'' there is a requirement to disck;se fair r-alue as ar the bahnce sheet date. I'he Coinpanv engaged independent
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'".aluation specialists to determine the fair value of its invesrment properw as at reporting date. The determination of
the fairvalue of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as futrie cash flows from the assets (such
as lettings, furure revenue stfeams, capital values of fixtures and httings, anv entironmental matters and the overall
repair and condition of the propern) and discount rates applicable to those assers. In addition, development risks
(such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration rvhen determining the fair 

'alue of the
properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date.

Impainnent o.l'Pmpefi' p/ant equipnent, Inue$nent prupertiet and CIY.'IP - Impairment exists 'nvhen the carrling value of an
asset or cash generati.ng unit exceeds its recoverable amount, r.vhich is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budgets. The recoverable amount is sensitir.e to the discounr rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected furure cash-inflorvs and the growth rate used.

Defined beneft obligation (DBO)- Nlanagement's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of undedying assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortalit\, discount rate and anticipation of future salarv increases. Variation in
these assumptions may signiFrcandf impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair ualue meavrement disc/osurw - Nlanagement applies r.aluation techniques (including but not limited to the use of
illiquidin discount on investments) to determine the fair value of fi.nancial instruments (rvhere active market quotes
are not available). This in'r'olves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with horv market participants
would price the instrument.

L.a/uation o;[ inue$ment in vbsidiaiu, joint aentaret and arotialet - Investments in subsidiaries, joint r.'enrures and associates
are carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators of impairment of such
investments. This requires assessment of several external and internal factor including capitalisation rate, key
assumption used in discounted cash florv models (such as revenue grovth, unit price and discounr rates) or sales
comparison method rvhich mav affect the caming value of investments in subsidiaries, joint \rentures and associates.
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.3. Prcperty, plant and equipment

'I emponn-
sttucrufes

( )f6cc equrpmenrs

Fumrtute and
frxtures 3.63

lr.il
{r 53

l.6l

il.5 1

0.51

t,.il
o.53

1.(ti

o.51

0i3

Toral 1.67 t,67 1.67 t.67
()aprtal \\irrk rn

Progress

ln

ln

(i) (lilrutml ohlgationt

The Compaov does not have uy contactud commrtmots for the acqusruoo of propem., plmt ud equrpment.

(ii) C4ikl ed lomu ir1 t".il
'Ihe (Jompanr has not caprtahsed ant bolro{rng cosr duflng the rear oded l\{arch 31,20?5

(iii) BtiLtiry planr ard qripnnr pleitged u notity
Thete ettst no restocttons on the tttlc ud oo rtms of prcpeq, plant ud equpm€nt hase been pl€dged m secunr for mr labdrues.

1'empoar
strucfures

()ffice e<lurpments

Fumrture ud
hstures

051

0.53

051

I r.53

1.63

It r1

I r.53

3.63

|51

I r.53

3.(t3

Total 4.67 1.67 4.67 1.6'l

Aeumulercd rl Nct rc*.

As at
April 01,2021

Addiriore /
.diutD6ts

durirg thc ycu

Dctcdor/
.distE6t!

duing ttc ycr
Ar et

Merch 3l, ZXll
As at

AprilOl,2f!4

Additioo
during drc yeru

Dcbdm/
rdisecna!

duing thc ycr

Ag rt
Mreh3l ,

w?s

Ae at
Merch 31ral25

Ar et
MtrJl3r.X2{

Net xt

Ar lr

^pf,OlaW)3

Additb$ /
.diBeal!

duiag tLeyur

Dclcti,or/
rdiEtEGso

duriry ttc ycr
Ar rt

}Imh 31,2{124
As er

Apdl0t al2,t

Additim
during tte yer

Ilchiou/
adiBlilc[r!

duriag ttc ycr
Ac et

MmhStAE4
As rt

Mreh3I,2XDl
Ar et

MrrchSLAIB
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Orher fin.nci.l as6c6 (Non-Curcnt)
't:n\ecured (()nsrdcrrd g.r.,d)

Secrrnr Jrposrts t.i{r

1.50

Non- cunot tax assetB (net)

lncomc t.rr pail tnet oipro$s!)n ti)r r,L\rs)

12.fi

Othg non- Cmt a:ecu
(Unseored consrdered good)

I)epostt \uth surutory eurhonic sde. porsr, {JI.og
40t.t 8

,ThccooPmyhrvemadetheabor,edeposrttotilemaPeel]ganstthe()rde'Pssedb,rRERAHmhalPardesh.nhuouffi

lovotorie
(Iowo of cot or act @lfuablc Elue)
lad rd plots

[rnd. development:md constucion worl m progress' 9,193.33

________u2ul

"fhe nbo(e hrentory represent a lmd pucel stmated at Kaauh, lLmachal Pradsh, md developmcnt constucion work h pmsess rncuned nll dire.

I i1r

r.50

t:. i{r
t2.58

Ir)1.;i
104.55

9.:{9.9,i
9,2J9.93

I r.69

0 .)l

u..61

(6.92)

15.69

7

8 Tmdc recciqbla
lnterest .rccrued on delaved palrenus liom ostomm :-

Unseored, consrdered good
'l'rade Recerrables - credr Impilred

lmpaimcnr Allou.ance ( allowance for expected crcdir loss)

Ir.rdt Rrccrr,rlrlrs ererirt lnrp,nrcd

9.90

6.92

t6.t2

t6.92)

9.90

Pardculam kss rhad 6 mooths l-2 veus 2-3 veas
More than

3 years Total
(r) Undrsputed'Icrderecervrbles consrdercdeood l._2i 8.65 9.9r)

il) L'ndrsputed Trade Recervables whrch have srgnrticmt
urcrelsc rn credt nsk

frtr) UndlsDuted'Inde Rccerrables - credt rmDured 6.9: 6.92
(rr. Drsptrtcd'lr.rrle Rrcrrrrbles consLderrd aorrl

fvj Dlspufed Trade Recervrblcs - whrch have srgnrticmt
u:rrr,st rn ircdrt rsli
trrl Drsputed'frrdrRecer'.rbks crcdtrmp.urcd

'fotal t.z3 15.57 16.82

Balance is oD -ll-Mar-202{

Particulars kss than 6 monrhs 6 months -l vear l-2 vem 2--l vears
More thao
3 vcam 'Iotal

fr) Undrspured Tnde reccrribles - consrdered rcod lt; ll.l.l I i.al)
tr) t'ndrspured Tradc Rr'cerahlcs - rvhruh h.rre slgnttic:rnt lncrese m

credl nsk

ln) Undsput(d fmdc Rcovables credr rmprred 6.91 6.91

lrl Drsputrd l r,rde Reccrrables+onsrdcred good

It; Drspured 'Ir.rdc Recerr'r[ries - rvhrch h.rr.e stgnrfic,mt rncrcse m
crcdrt nsk

l{ Qrsputtd I rrde Recen'ables - credr rmp.ured
-loral

t.2a 2t.36 22.61

{q
<l

Puioler A6i
Much 3l ,2fr!5

A. at

-l

6

/r months .l verr
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I Cash dd ca8b cquivivalcoao
Brl;uce sth scheduled bmks

-ln curenrlccounts '

-ln d(:txtstrs wth ongrntl hnrunr o[less rh:n ] month!

l0 Orhs bok b4lanc6
BJances ruth Scheduled Banks
. Brnk deposrs rurh mirunry more thm 3 monrhs but l6s rho 12 months

ll Oths fiBDcial .sca8

Serunq deposrr

' (L'nseored, consrdered goor{)

' (L'nseored, consrdered doubtful)

kss: .\lkru'ance rbr doubttirl depostts

.\dunces recorerable rn cxh

12 Otho mcnt mcts
.\drmces recorerabk rn cch or rn kmd or ibr ralue to be recered
Balance wth govemment authontes

(Unsecwed, consrdered good)

(Unsecrred, consrdered doubtltl)
kss: -\lhunce lbr Doubdul debb

8ti

591.09

2l).10

: t.2t)

133.10)

l.anl

i:6 llr
,50.2u

160.51

0.3)
().15)

3.r.31

r94.84

20.3.t

;{.61

:lJ.(,1

20.4

1.80

_______qJ3 _________q4

l,t Lrtlscrl li'r rht P.rvrlrnti (,f rpecrtlr(l fr(,1(os , ,nlr

'Includes Rs 590.2i Lalhs (31 \{rtch 202{: Rs. 590.25 lJchs ; held rn nccouns tbr r prnjeci under Real Estrtc (Reguhnons md Development) .\ct, 2016 1RER\,1. The m(,ney
cm be uulised tor the ptvmcnts oispeclfied proles only.

591.09

1.11

9.8.t

38.29

i.il
0.li

10.35

o-)

Pmiolea Ar rt Ar ra
Mffitrll ,2}25 Mftf,3r,2021
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13 Equiw* Share Capital
-\uthoriscd. issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and pr valuc pcr sharc

Authorised
ll),(ll)() ( previ()us vear - 10,0(X)) liquin shares oi{ 1() each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up sharc capital

10,000 ( prcr-ious tear - 10,0(lO) Equitr shares nf ( l0 each

l.lllr I 0r)

1.00 1.00

[.r )0 Lrx )

1.00 1.00

Reconciliation of numbers of shares

Equity Share Capital
.\t thc bcgrnnrng oi the vcar

.\dd : lssucd during thc lear

.\t thc cnd of thc vear

at the and at the end ofthe

No of Shares No of Shares

lr),( )( ){ )

10,000 10,000

(B) Rights, preferences and reetrictions attached to equiry- shares
The Companv has onlv one class of equig' shares having a par value of { 10 per share. Each holder o[ equiw shres is entitled to one vore per share. Thc
(iompanv declues and pay's drvidends in Inrhan Rupees. The drridend proposed bv the b<lard of directors is subject to approval o[ the shareholclers in the
ensuing Annual Geneml NIeetrng.

In the et'cnt of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equtq shares u.ill be enutled to receive remaining assets of the Companv, after distribution of
all prcferential arnounts. The distribution will be in proponion to the number of equin shares held by the shareholders.

(C) Details of shareholders holding more thalAlok shares in the companv at anv time during the vear

DLF [{ome Developers Limtted (Parent Compml) 10,000 1000 o

(D) Th" Company has not issued any shxes without cash consideradon or ant bonus shres and there has not been any buv-back ofshares in the 6re r.ean
immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

(E) -l'he (iompanl has not resened an,i shares tbr issuancc under options.

10,0r-x )

(F) Shares held bv promoters at the end ofthe vear As at March 3l ,2025 As at March 37,2024

Particulars

Number

% holdins
% change during
the vear

Number

% holding

7o change
during the
year

l)t.lr I loqc l)erekrpers Lrmitccl alrng sith its nominrcs lr),ln)() llxP,, lr ),1 )( )r ) l()(),' o

Retained eaming
-Statement ofprofit and loss

As pcr last balancc shect

l,oss tirr the tear

.\dd:( )ther compreheosir-e incomc

\et dctjcit in thc srarcmcnr of protit and loss

Equitl component of compulsorilv convenible debentures
.\s pcr lasr balance shcet

I)cletirrn durrng rhc during

(5.974.r,.1)

(55o.9(D

(s,s37.02)

(437.ttz)

(\)

(r)

9,(rtl.l.( n I 9.6tt3.r lt )

9,6tii,( )r,

' \,+.IJ,

(l l't, ,;,1 1 ittt h..Lr; jutr.rt/r,tt.l'l: it; lti.rti:)

'lirtal other cAuin-

Particularc As et
March 3l ,2025

Particulare Ae at
March 31 2075

As At
March31,2024,

Number of eharcs o

14. Ar at
March 3t 2025

As at
March 3t 2024

__________l!i:iiu _______cJl1I1_

'r.6lt l.r x I

3, I 57.-l(r .3.7{ )tt.36
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15 Borosings

l-,,rn. tr',rrr rrl.rrr,l 1,rrrr unrcrrrll
i,963.10 ;.:b:.rI
5,963.10 i,282.3t'Rep.ryable on demmd nnd cees mrcrest a1, 8.7s" 

" rMarch 3r. 202-l: g.7;or) per .mnum ,N * bilmce sheet date

16 TBdcpay.blc6
Due to subsidran companrcs/ pimerchrp fms (ret'er nore 2!
Tottl OuBundng dues of mrcro enterpnsc ud sma.ll eoterproes (reter note no-31)
Total Oustmdrng dues o[credrtore other thm m,co €nterpnses ud small enterpnses

16. t2

I20.1:

2{. l2

;;;l

2t3.0i
lm.7l -130.76

Tmdc Payables agcing echedule

2025 tn

Pmiculars

Outstandiog for follorinq periods from due date of Damentr

kss rhan I y@
l-2 year 2-3 vear

lUore than
3 t'eare Total

6.b9 6.69
\IS\tE]-DUC .1t.8, 38 li l'i.-! lr.rl- I 13.-B

I 6..!-l ;.fi1 1ll .ln.0i -0.1.1

;s :1 -t6. l0 I l.;6 6t.91 I r)0.i I

Balance as in

PaniculaE

Outstanding for follo$ing periods from due date ofpairent*

I4ss rhan I veat
l-2 year 2-3 vear

More the
3 veac 'fotal

'i, \lS\lE.\ot due 6.69
r, \l:\ll. I),,,

I l.til :t fil 9.()t 16.16 I 1.02
rlrl ( )rlrrri ;0.-6 106.0r) 0.t+ 9(i.0(r :i1.05

durs ()therJ

-,.1e !2-.90 9l; t2212 i-lrl _6

L7

' In resp&t oi tot l ou$tudng dus oam,cro oterproe md small enterproes beyond the penod of 15 dayr tiom rhe due drte md also x mnuoned m the fbm MSN{E-I 6led
br the Compml rrth Regrsff ot ComPm$, thm hm been delay in paihent to thesc .\l-\i\lE venrlon due to non-submrssmn of requsrte doomens bv the respcnre vendoc,
whrch has bem eclinowledged bl rhe rendor. Hence. the Compiuy h* been uneble to process rherr prymen* .md the delry rs not mbutrble ro the Cmpiuy.

' slmi[ ht_omrnon Is grveo where no due date oi pavoent rs specrt'ied rn rhrt c& drsclosur€ rs irem the dnrc of the msacnon.

Othq firucial liabilitie
lntcrct .rccnrerl ltrt not dur ,,n bor,,srngs
Itrkrrsr.lcctued,il) (l(:L)

Intercst.rctruecl,rn ril!rncr ti.)m cusn,m(rs,rnd 1)rher!

:e.ufln Dcp/rsrr

Rcqstr,rnrn ch.rrgrs p.l.rblc

{36..t6

0.87

.1.1 8

t2.-15

31i.82

0.lt;
-1.18

16.59

18 Other currenr liabiliries
(-,rrr.rfr lirl,rirr\

l).r\.rl)1. r,,r ., ,.i r,, ., {Ifl(.n {r
( rrlrrr I.rlrlrrrtr
:t.rnrr,rr durs I: rr.rl'lt

( )- l.l
{il.l0

{+l.li
31t.98

2.1.8i

-l t:.ll
t(,. i I

2.t.lii

199.29

8.1(,

182.1J

I

tnnRtrnt

tcoul'{TAri

({ iil I-nkhs)

&dPdtrlu A8 .t
Mrch rf ,2025 M.rcfr SL m?,{

ur, I)rsputcd riLrrs-\lS\lt:

lil) DrsDuted dues.\lS\rt.:

337.t6
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ln

19 Operating revenue

Relcnue from salc ()fconstructed propertres l{)5.5(r 39+.;ti
105.56 294.78

*Timing of revenue recomition

Rclcnue recognirirxr at r poinr oI trme

Revcnuc rccognition over period of time

Total revenue fiom contracts with customers

Contract balances

'I'rade receiyables from conracts under Ind AS I 15
(lonract Assets

(lontract l,iabilitics (refer note 'l 8)

Set out beloq' is the amount of revenue recognised from:
Movement of contract liability
.\mounts includc'd in conrract lirbiliries itt rltc begrnninq of rhe rear
-\mount rccen ed ,\djusrcd u:nnst conrrirct lirbJrn dur.ing thc vear

l)crftrrmlncc obligrtions satisficd canceled x] current vetr
Amounts included in contract liabiliries at the end of the vear

S lncludcs { (105.5(, lakhs (31 ltrrch 202+ {29+.:8 lakhs) recognised out (,f()pening c(urract lilbilirics.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and toss with
Rcvenuc as pcr (lonlrxcted price

Adiustments
Srgni frcant [-rnlncing componenr
( )thcr irdjustments

For the t'ear ended
March 31,2025

l(15.j(r

For the year ended
March jl,20'24

29+. l1

105.56 291.78

March 31,2025 March3l,20Zl

.l+1.15 + 12.+ I

441.35 112.11

'l'rade receilables are non-inrerest bearing and re generalll on rems of 30 rr 90 davs.

Contract assets are initiallv recognised for rer,enue emed on account of contracts u'here retenue is recognised o1.er the per.iod of time as receipt of
considerxtion is conditional on successful completion of perfommce obligatiotrs &s per contract. ()nce the perfomance obligation is fultilled md
milestones for invoicing are achieved, conuact asers re clmsified to trade receir.ables.

(lontract liabilities include mount receirred from customen as per the installments stipulated in the buver agreement to deliver properties once the
propertics tre completed and control is tmnsfered ro cstomers.

L)ue to resriction on transfer of land to persons \yho are not the agpicultunsri'non-agnculturist of Hmachal Pradesh states, provided in llimachal
Pradesh'l'enancv & Land Refoms.{ct, I912, the Company hm cancelled the mrximum sale of plotted rea in the projecr during the vear.'l'he
()omparrv is currendv esploring further plans of selling that cancelled rea tither br rvav of constructing nptraments or rillm rvhich are esily
transferable under the -{ct.

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

+r2.+r

I 3+.51)

r I 05.56)

1,.179.71

Q r-2.52)

291.78

4{r.35 1t2.{t

March 31,2025 March 31,202'l

I05.56 291.O9

12..1 r )

t05.56 291.78

Perfomance oblioation
Infomation about the Companv's perfomance obligations for material contracts are smmarised belorv:

'l lrc pcrformancc obligrrdon of thc ()ompanv in case o[ sale of resiclential lpxrtmenrs, dereloped pkrts is srtisfied once the proiect is completetl and
contnrl rs transferrcd t(, the cusromers.
'[ hc cusromer makcs the pavmetrt f()r c()ntrlctcd pncc as per thc irrsralmenr stipulrtcd in rhe Brrrer's .lgreemenr
'[ hc rransactiott pflcc xllocirtcd of the remaining pcrftrmancc obligrrions (unsaristied or parrirrllr. unsrrisficd) irs rr 3lst \larch '2(]25
is t {- l.ll4 Iakhs (3 I \larch 2tt2{ t ,t] 1.8.1 lakhs). '['hc srmc is espccted ro bc recogmsed rvirhin I re .3 r'crrs

\t

/cHlntrrrrrl
\ nccoulttl.ulsl

'\ /W,

Pardculate
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Notes to Financial Statemenrs for the vear ended March 31, 2025

ln

20 Other income
Intercst income from:

-Bank deposits

-lncome tax refunds

I-iabilitics no longer required srirten back

21 Cost ofland, plots, development rights, constructed prcperties and othere
( irst of land, pl()ts. c()nsrrucrcd pr()perties and other developmcut acr,\ itrcs

22 Finance cost
Interest espense on Borrowings
Intcrest expense on Debefltures

Interest to Cutomers
Interest on delay in parment of tares

23 Other expenses

Rent expense

Rates and tanes

compensation paid

Water md electricin

Reprrir and maintenance expense
()thers

Cons tructed properdes,'colonies
Adrcrtisement and sales promotion expense

Traveling and conterance expense

Securifi' expenses
Commission and brokerage

l,egal and professional expense

Pavmenr ro Auditore
- Statuton audir (including GS'I)
- Other sen'iccs

r\mounts//-\ssets rvrinen off
Rad debts rallorrance on doubtful rosets

fl hrs sprcc h;rs bc'en irrrcnrionatlr leit blrrnk;

38.U9

0.21

21.31

25.26

0.2i
284.19

60.{l 309.72

68.:(t I 56.55

68.76 156.55

+83.6-t

I t.9i

-0.- |

0.6I

t:3. I 3

0.9-

115.26

l.l l
5s0.53

0.94

0,-15

1..+9

2.6,-

+5.51

50.i8

+1.12

6.-6

0.82

o.o2

I04.01

2.26

2.16

33.06

38.: I
6.:+

t32.29

7.31

0.23

5.68
1.09

163.60 33s.04

Perticulars For the
Merch3t I)25 M*cL3l"NA

{8{.5 I

:.31

().2-

6.39

t
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31,2025

expenses
(-\) Tht *it" components of income tL\ e\pense and the recon€iliation of expecte<l rax cxpense based on the domesdc eflfecti'e tlr rate of the C,mpanv at

25. l70 o and the reported tax expense in pro6t or loss are as ftrllorvs;
(lurrent tn
l)cfened rax

Income tax expense ,ls reported in the statement of profit end loss

(l)) Rcconciliation oftax cxpenses and the accounting profit multiplied b1'lndia's domestic rrt rate frrr llarch 31,2025 & \{rch J1,2024

Accouoting 0ossVpro6t before income ta-t

- :\t countn's srarutory incomc tari rate o( 25-ljo o (3I NIatch 2021: 25.17' o)

Tar impact of expenses disallorved during the vear:

Defened ta-\ asset n()t created in respect of Ioss

Net Profit/(Loss) for the vear/ previous vear atrributable to equn, sharehoklers
Total number ofequrn' shares r>utstanding at the begrnning of the veu
R>tential eqr.rty shares in compulsonh' con\-errible debenrures

Total number of equin' shres outstanding at the end of the vear/prer.ious vcar
Weighred average ofetluin shares outsranding for f)EpS
Nominal value of equrn shre (R.s.)

Basic eamings per shtre of Rs. l0/- each

Diluted emings per shme of Rs. l0/- each

(5s0.90)

(r 38.66)

I 38.(r(r

(437.62)

(1lu.l5)

I 10. t5

Deferred ta-\ asset created/re'ersed during the ver recognised in statemenr of pmfit or krss*
Income tax expense

{'he companv has incurred losses in tlre cwent ler as (ell as brought fon[rd unabsorbed losses undcr tar lau-s which results in creation oIDefered trr
assers"I'he companv has recognised deferred tax assets on bmught f<rnvrd income tas losses to thc extent that it is probable rhat ta\able profit u.ill be
available to uuliscd agtnst such losses. T'his inrolves significant managcment judgement, estimation and assumptions.

25 Eamlngs/ (t oss) per equity share
Emings/ (-oss) Per Share (EPS) is dctermined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders' of the Holding Company. Basic earnings per share is
computed using the rveighted arerage number of shues outstanding duing thc ver^ Compulson convertible debenrures are treated as equiyalen-t ;Fequir,v
share for th€ purpose of basic eamrngs per equin shre. Diluted eamings per shre is compured using the weighterl ar.erage number of common and rlilutive
comrnon equiralent shres outstanding during the rear including share options, excepr n-here the result u.ouldbe ant -dilut1c.

(ss0.e0)

10,(x)0.00

9(r,83(),(I)(.).([)

9(r,ft.lO,{X)L).fi)

96,8,1{r,0(x).00

10.00

(0.s7)

(r.sD

(437.62)

I 0,000.00

96,830,00t).00

96,8,10,(n0.(X)

96,8"10,()(x).00

10.01)

0..rs)
() 4s)

\Rccoutlr"t*\
g'grtg

P.rticulm

2{ Tax

(I in Lakhs)
For the ycer cudcd Bor the year eodcd

Mar,chSt Z!415 I0tr.tcb-3l,frLl

Partic.l"m For the vcar ended
March 31, 2025
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 3l, ZLZi

26. Ratio Analysis

(.) Current ratio Increase in Liabilities 1.39 1.56 - 10.9.5c'o
(b) Debt-equih, ratio Increase in Borrotings 1.89 1.42 32.580 o

(") Debt senice corcrage ratio Decrease in finance cost (0.01) -0.27 -95.940,0

(d) Return on equih'ratio Due to increase in Losses in
Retained Earning -17.44o/o -1 1.8091o

47.84o/o

e( ) Im'entoq' turnover ratio Decrease in cost of land,
development rights 0.01 0.02

-55.64u o

(0 Trade receivable turnol.er ratio Decrease in revenue from
operation 8.25 18.75

-56.00o/o

(g) Trade pavable turnover ratio \,\ N.\ \.\ \-\
(h) Net capital turnover ratio Decrease in total sales 0.03 0.08 -56.350/o

(i) \et profit ratio Increase in net profit after
ta\ 521.880,6 1-18.-160 o

251.54o/o

(D Rerurn oo capital emplor-ed Reduction in Expenses -2.100,h 3.049/o - 1 69.050 i,
(k) Return on investment N.\ N.\ N.\ \-\

ffhis space has been intentionallv left blank)

S.No tRatio Reasoo forVariatioa As at 31st March
2025

As at 31st Match
20u

Yariatioa more
thara?5o/o

/q7'
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27 Related Party Disclosure

In accordance with Ind -\S-2'l "Related Parry Disclosures", the names of related parties along with agyegate amount of transacti.ns
and vear cnd balanccs with them are given as frrl.krws:

A)
a)

Relationship
Ultimate Parent Company :-
Rajdhani In\.cstmeflts and ..\gencies l)rivate Limited

Intermediate Parent company :-
Dl,t; Limited ((?arent c()mpanv of DLIj Fft>me l)evclc_rpers t,imited)

Parent Company:-
I)LIr Home l)evclopers l-imitcd

Fellow subsidiaries:-
DLF Luxun FIomes l,imited with whom transaction have been carricd out during the vear,

b)

c)

d)

B) Details of transactions with the related party/parties during the previous year in the ordinary course of business*.

tin

Particulars
Ultimate Parent Company/ Parent

comPany Fellow Subsidiaries Company

March31,2025 Ma'tch 31,2024 March31,2025 i[{arch31,2024

Interest expense onlrorrowings
l)LF I Iome l)cvclopers l,imited 468.19 3- 1.82

I)l,I; l.uxun llomes l.Lmited 1-1.85 1.31

Interest expense on CCD
D[.[i [ftrmc Devcl<>pers Limitcd 0.97 0.97

Rental Expense
DLI llome Dcvelopers Limitcd 0.9.1 0.82

Loan taken
l)l.li I Lrme l)evelqrcrs Limited 50l.rlr) 1.456.00
DLli Luxun I krmes Limited 177.00 134.00
Loan Paid
I)LF IIome I)evelopcrs t-imited 100.00
l)l,l; Luxurr IIorles Limitcd

b Balances at end. tin

Particulars
Ultimate Parent Company/ Parent co

Fellow Subsidiaries Company

March 31, 2025 March37,2024 March31,2025 March31,2024

Equity share capital 1.00 1.00
I)l.lr Ilomc [)cvckrpcrs I.imitcd r.00 1.00

Borrowings 3,192.31 3,792.31
l)l,l; I lome l)cvckrpcrs Lirnitcd 5,652.31 5,1+8.31

I)1.[' I.uxurr' [ lomes Lirnired 31 l.(X) t 3.1.00
CCD 9,683.00 9,683.00
[)1.[; I lonrc I)cvckrpcrs l.inritccl 9,683.00 9.683.00
Rent payables

[)l.l] [ Iorrc l)cvclopcrs Linrirtd
Interest accrued on borrowings 42t.91 334.64
DL[; Homc l)evckrpcrs l.imitcd -r2l.9l 33+.6+
l)l.I; Luxun Ilornrs Lirlited I l.)5 1 18
Interest accrued on CCD 0.87 0.87
l)l.F I lornc l)cvclopcrs l.inriterl 0.8- 0.8=

7
(l'his sp'lce lus bccn ittcntionrillv lcfi blenk;

2-

+
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28 Financial risk management

Financial instruments bv categon

(D Fair values hierarchv

Furanoal assets are masured at fau r.alue ur the finmcul staftmelt and are grouped mro thre lerel of far r.alue hrmrclrv The
three letels are defucd based orr rhe ,bso'abdrn of srgnricanr npur to tlrc masuremmt as [olkr\.s:

kvel I (]urted pnce trrfladpsted'. o acnve mrker iot the fmancul usmmenr
Iarel 2: InPut othtr than quoted pnccs mcluded ruthu levcl I that ac obsm-able firt thc assers ot lubdrnes. srher dfecth.or
lavel 3: Llnobsm'able urputs for the assrts or lubrtnes

(ii) Fair assets measued at fair value-recurring fair ralue measurements- Nit

(iiD Fair value of instruments measued at amortised cost:

ln

(iv) Finmcid iGtrmenrs by cetegory

For mom.ed cost ustt:Mmts. cmug value tepresmts dte best esmate of fu value.

(v) Risk management

1he Companv's actwrtrcs e\Posc tr to mdket osk. hqudlh $k and aedrt nsk. The Companr's Boud of llucctos has oremll
responstbrlrn for drt esublrhmdt and o\:mrght of dre Compuris nsk managmot fimsvork. -[]us 

flote explans the sources of
nsk s'hrch the otrn rs exposed to md ho\s the fltrn manages the nsk and thc relared mpact m tlre dnanod smtmmtt

(A) Credit dsk

(iredt nsk rr dre rlsk llut a countcrparh t-ads ro tlrscharge ts oblgak,n (, rhc (innpalr. -l1rc (-.mpam : crp,surc rr credr nsk rs
uflutncctl maurlr bt cash an<l cash equttalents- nadc rccrvablcs and luancral assrts mo.urcd at amrrrtrstrl cost. I hc ( irmparr
c<nttttouslt mtutors dcthults rrf ostomtrs and other c()utrt6p[tres and mcotpontes thN sti)matr(]n urto rs credrr nsk crntrrrls.(-rcdrt nsk rclatcd r; cash and cash quvalsh md bank deposrrs rs manrgeii br onlv eccepnng fughlr mr.d banks iud drvcrsrfturg
bank dt1.srrs. ()thcr fuialoal assets mclsured at am()rturd crrst urclude l()ans to empk)\ces. s(runn d(?r,:trs antt othcrs. Crechr
rlsk rclatcd t(, lhcic rtrhtr hrtincnl assctr ts managed bv m,mlrrurg rhr recovtubilnl rrf such arn,u,rrt, a,nrrr,u,rralr.. 11de rt 16e
sanrt nmc mrcnral crlrrol srstern trl place ensure the amrnurt: are urthur defuietl hmrrs

CH

o\,
p.E

\; Ltljj

March 3l ,2025 March

Particulars lrvel Carrying Value Fair Value C*ning Value Fair Value

Finucial assts
()ther Fuancal .\sset \ou-Cunmty
l-oal and -\dvances

Tnde rccerables
()ths Bank Balances

Cash ud e<lurvalmts

Totat finmcial sets

kvel l
Lerd l
tf,id I
I*tel l
krel .l

l.i0
9.81

9.90

191.09

8.{3

1.5{)

9.lt.l

9.90

59t.09

8.J3

1.5{)

I 9.1.8.r

15.69

556.2{)

6.-t{)

l.t0
191.8+

I 5.69

5i6.20

6.{0
620.1(, 620.76 171.63 7'14.63

Finocial liabilities

Borouugs rlacludmg Interest -\ccrued)

l mde parablcs

Othcr financral lrabilrtrcs

Total fi nmcial liabiliris

Ieel 3

ln'el 3

lrvel 3

6,799.1(

190.71

l;.50

6399.16

190.7 I

17.50

5,618. ll
330.76

2t.u

5,61 8. I 3

310.76

21.61

6,60't.97 6,601.91 5,9?0.53 5,970.53

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars lrvel FVTPI- FVOCI Amo.tised cost F\rrPt- FVOCI Amortised cost

Finmcid assets

()ther Fmarml .\sset Noil (lutrsrt

Loan ud .\dvances
'l'rarle rccerlables

Otha Bank Balarces
(iash and e<lurtalelts

Total financial asscts

Level 3

l-er.el 3

Level 3

I.evel 3

Irrel 3

l.50

9.&]

9.90

i9l.()9

8..13

l.i0
19.1.8-l

t5.69

556.20

6-+0

620.'16 7'14.6i
Finmcial liabilities

Bomrrwrgs'lncludng lnteresr .\cmcd'

'l mdc parables

()ther ltnarrcnl lubdrncs

Total financial liabilities

l.etcl 1

t6'el 3

Irrel 3

(r.199.1(r

l9{).? I
lt.i0

5.6t8.1 1

33r).i6

21.61

6,fi7.97 5,970.:

ln
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(a) Credit risk management

(i) Credir risk rating

The (iompant asscsses and manages oedrl nsk of firuncql assets bared on ioll()trg categones amred on the basrs 9f
assumpion!. urputs Md factors specrfic to the class of finanoal asseti.

A: [,r,rv oedt nsk

B: \l(rdcmte credlt nsk

C: I hgh credt nsk

1}le (irmpant proudes f<rr cxpected oedrt loss based o[ the foUosmg

' I-rfe tme etpece<i credrt loss ts plruderl ftrr mde recel.ables.

Based on busmess ertvronmmt m u'hrch the Cmput op@tes, a default on a financul asset u consrdered u,hm the (oufltq part!
fads to make paments trthu rhe agreed me pood as ps conmci Loss Btes reflemg dct-aults are based on actul crerit loss
e\pencnce and consrdemg drffcorces benven onmt md hlstoncal Kofl()mtc condtrrotrs.

-\ssets are wnqt off thm there rs no rssonable erpctauon of tecoverl, such as a debtor declamg barkrupts or a llngabon
dmded agust the Companv. The Company continus to ogage slth puu€s r.hose balances are mno off al6 aumprs to
mforce repapot. Rcovens made arc recogused m statemmt of pto6t md loss.

ln

Credit rating Puticdars March 31, 2025 March 31,202{

.\: l-(^\'ocdt flsk
Cash ud cash e<plrlots. other bank balances,
loans, seorns deposrt. tude reovables and oths
Eruoal assets

62r.16 --:.t{l

B.: I Lgh credt nsk llans. othr f_rnancal assets ard mde recorables

B.: I Igh crcclrt nsk Loans. rths linanml assets and mde recervables ),- .,2:

b) Credit risk exposure

Provision for expecred credit losses
'l'he (irmpanr prorrdes lirr e\pected credt krss based on 12 monrhs ard Lfeme erpcted credrt krss basrs ior follrxrtrg t:urancral assets:

As at Nlarch 31, 2025

in

As at March 31,202{

ln

{ CHARTERED
-o\

*

Asset group Basis of categorization l'ro\ision for expenses credil loss

I rlv credt nsk (lash and cash equnalmts. othc bank balanccs.
loans. mde recarables md othr tinmoal asscts l2 morth erpcted credrt krss

\lodrmte credrt nsk
Tnde Recenablc, Loans and other linmcal assels

l2 month expmed oedit loss/Lfe me
erprted cedrt loss

I [t.qh crctlt nsk
Tade Recqvable. Loaf,s ild orher lurilrcul assers

l2 motth espected crcdtt loss/Lfe me
expected credrt loss/fr.rllv ptonded for

Particulars Estimated gross

curying amount
at defaull

Probabiliq'

Expected
Default

Expected
credit

losses

amount net
Carning

of impairment
prorision

()drt,r linrncral \iser \ru (iurrent L5l) r,.l[' I )ll
(iash and cash cqusakrrrs rt.{l {r r{l' li. ll
()tlrer bank balance 59 I (i9 j(./l ([)

l,oar rnd .\dlancrs ( t.i x)' .,

I radt,rt'ccr,rblcs I6 l{l .l l. lt" ,, .6.t) 1).t)l

()tlrcr fjlrrlcnl .\ssct (-urrert lU l9 3+1'. rr t5 i.) t{.t

Particulars
Estimated gross
car4ing amount

at default

Erpecred
Defauh

Probabilin

Expected
credit losses

Carrying
amounl net of

impaiment
provision

()thcr fjmancnl \ssct \oo (iurrcnt' L5r I r)lll I ilr
(-a:h rrtrl crsh erluralcnts 6.-lo (+|
( )thrr brnk brlrrrct i56.:r) |.ut,. ii(,.1r
l.orn enrl \dvancrs
'I mtic rcccrr rbl.. :l 6l 31).61,0 6.92 1i.61)
( )Ihcr I urriloal \i.cl (lunott l9i l, u I It",, Ir.15 lr+ fH

*
OUNTANTS

I

I

I

I
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A) I-rqurdrn rsk

Prudcnt Lqurdrn nrk managmmt mpLes oaotamug sulhoerr cash aad markehble scuues and the avarlabrlw of limdmg
thlough an adequate amouot ofcommtned credrt t-aqloes ro mcet oblgatrons u.heu due. I)ue ro the name of thc busmss. the
Companv mmrmms flexrbrln m fundmg bv mmmmmg al.atlabtllh.xnder commrned f-acdrnes.

\laaagemmt in()trtt()s ()llug forqsts of dre Compmr's hqudrn p()sttro0 and qsh ald cash cqu*.alenrs on rhe basrs of expcrel
cash florvs. 'flrc Compant talcs mr{) accoutrt rhe hqudrn of rhe muket ur u.htch rhc eunn- openrcs.

Matuities of finmcial liabilities
The ables belorv ualvses the C()mPatrf's finucul lqbrhues mto relmlt marun6 groupdgs bascd on th@ conmctual mam11es:

As at Milch 2025

As at March 2021 tn

C) Mrket risk

a) Interest rate risk

D
Liabilities

Thc compaor's ftred ote borosmgs ue cmed at mortrsed cosr. 
-Ihel re thsetbre not subpc! o trrrcest ate nsk as defuied ur

Ind .\S 107. surce terher the mmg mount nor the fururc cash florvs urll flumare bruuse of a changc m market mr6csr ntes.

iit' Assets

1he compmrrs fited deposrls ue camed rt fured mre. fhcetbre n(rt sublecr rr mtcest mrc nsk as defuied m Ind.\S l0i. surce
iletthff the cmrrg amout tror the fr!ture cash flows r:ll flucmrc because tlf a chmge o muket mterst Btes.

29 Capital management

ln

The (irmpanl mmages ts captal to ensuc that the Companr'*rll be able (r coomue as gourg concor u'hrle mrtmumg the
rerum to stakrholdss tlttouglr optmuantxr of debt aod equrn balaoce. The caprml smcrure of tlrc Companr cousrsrs of net debt
and total equrn of rhe (iomparl. The (Jompmr rs not subFrt to anl extenrallr unposccl capral rtnrr"-"rra,.

Particulars Irlarch 31,2025 Irlarch 31, 2024
Bonorvurg. 5.963.3{} i.2tf .3I
Irarlc plrbL,: l'l(r - 

I il0.-6
( )thcr tinarrctl ltabilrr,: li-I. lr) 'lj-.16
'Iotal Debrs 6.608.11 5,970.52
l,rss: (laih rnd cash rqurvalents fi ll 6. lr)
Net debts 6.599.6It r.96+ I l
Toral equitv l.l il{ .16 ].:0r.1()
Total debr and equit;- ,.r5lr I I 9.6-1.lli
Gearing ratio ('r;; (t-.61 6l.6iD

30 fhc (irmpanr has uscd a tltud patn optmr{ accounmrg <rfnure ti)r murrtrtrng trs boks of acolurr and thar tlrr rudrr mrl fceturc ()f thc
satl :ofnvare sas eoabled rnd opemted throughout the 1@ fi)r all relesanr mnsrcnr[s rcc()rdcd m rh( s(]fni?e rntl rhe companr penm.ed
thc autlrt mrl ur [rll crrmplance \lth rhe rcqutremeflts ,rf sccnrn l-21i.5 oi rlre (irmprnrrs \ct. 201 1, trl respeo of the finmoal rmr errlcd
\Irrrch ll, 2l)25. Hostvcr. o respm of rhe linencul |carr entled \[rch 11. 202J. \lalagtmetrr ts llr)t m p(,sse.s(nr 0f Sm_rcc ()rganrranon
(irrrrols rqrrrc s(xll nre 2 rept)rt kr derennurc rrhcther the requremmts ,rfab.,\-e Rure haj bs''rn(l

HARTE

ACCOU
NT

RED

ANS/

/

\l\

l
kj

n

Particulars kss thm I year l-5 lrars
More thm 5

years
Total

Non-derivatives

lirrrouur5 6.399.i6 6,.199.;6
1-nde par.ablc l9{}.: I 190.1 I
Othcr l;urarcral Labrlrres l- ii I-.ir)
Total 6,607.9'1 6,607.97

Particulats l+ss than I vear .l-5 rcos
More than 5

,Eds
Total

Non-derivatires

fhrrowugs 5.618. l3 5.618.1.1
'I'nde parablc 3-10.?6 330.1(
( )rhcr Fmancral [-ubrltres 2t.61 ll.6J
Total 5,970.53 5,970.53

C
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DET.dNCO REALTORS PRryATE LIMITED
CIN \o. U70l0l [{R2(X)6PT(]106163

Regd. ()fticc: trlezzaninc Floor, DLF (jate$ar 1'orver, R Ulock, DLF Cir1., Phase lIl, Gurugram HR 122(x)2 tN
Notes to Financial Satements for the year ended March 31,2025

31 Details of dues ro Nlicro and Small Einrcrprises as per r\ISNIED ..\cr, 2006 ro the e\rcnr of inlbmation available with the (_ompanv :

ln

'l'he abore information regarding l\{icro, Small and Nledium Enterprises has been detemincd to rhe exrenr such panies hare been identihed on the basis of
infi:rmation alailable rvith the company. No other transaction harc been entered with suppliers as <le8ned under the Nlicro, Small and N{edium Enterprises
Derelopment Act, 2(X)6 other than disclosed above. The same has been relied ,pon bv th" au4itors.

32 The Company is primrily engaged in the business of Colonization and real Estate Der.elopment, rvhich as per Indian Accounung Standard - 10g on
'operating Segments' as Specified under section 133 of the companies Act, 201.1 read with rule 7 of comparues (Accounts) Rules, 201+ (as amended) is
considered to be the onll' reportable business segment. The Companv is primaril;i operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

33 No provision for tar for the year has been made in the accounts as there is no tarable income under the provisions ofthe Income-Tax Act 1961. The
company follorvs nonfied IND As 12 - Income Ta-res, as per secdon 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read vith rules made thereunder. The compmy has
incurred losses in the cuffent ver as well as brought foruard unabsorbed losses und.er taJi larvs which results in creation of Deferred tat msets. 

,fhe
comPany has recognised deferred ta-r assets on brought forurd income ta-x losses to rhe e\tenr that it is probablc that tasable prcfit will be available to
utihsed against such losses. This involres signifrcant managem€nt iudgement, estimation and asrr*ptions.

Y Capital commitmenrs as at 3l N,Iarch 2025 are Nil. (previous year t Nil lakhs).

35 Conringent liabilirv (interest, compensation not prorided tirr) in respect ofongoing legal cases as on Nlarch 3lst 3)25 is Rs. 108.41 Lakhs@rer.ious year Rs.
108 41 lakhs)' The case is pending bef<rre SCDRC Court, where complainant ii seeking refund of principal amounr, interest and liugation charges. Based on
rhe cxpen ad'ice the nurnagement of the company is conFrdent that the outcome of ihe case wril be in the favour of company. Accordinglv, i. p-rist ,
has been provided in the Frnancial statemenr for the aborc maners.

36 other statutory information for the year ended March 31, 202s and Match 17, 2024

(i) The (irmpany does not hare anv benami propem', u'here anv proceedrng has been iniriared or pending against the Companr. for holding ant benami
ProPert)' under the Benami'fransactions prohibition) Ict, 1988 (45 of 19t18) and rules marlc rhcreunrler.

(ii) 'Ihc Companv do not have any transacdons s,ith companies struck off under Secdon 2.lt] tif thc (iompanies Act, 2013.

(iii) 1'he (iompanv do not hare anv chargcs or satisfacdon u'hich is vet t. be regrstered rvrth Registrir ol (Jompanies bevond rhe statutorv period.

(rv) 'l'he (irmpanr. havc flot rradcd or inresrcd in Crlpto Currcnq.or \-irtual (.urrcnq. tluring the tlnancial r.ear.

REN

^y

Particulars
As at

March 31,2025

As at

March3l,2024
'l"he principal amount and thc interesr duc thercon remaining unpaid ro anr supplicr rs ar the end oicach

lm()unt of lnl(Ml pai.l br rhc buver tcrms oi Scctlr )n I 6. i thc \[icro Small rn.l \ lcdium Enterprisc
[)ctelopmen I \cr, 2r)l )6 along rvirlr the rI thc Parment medc t() rhc supplicr berond rhe aPp( rintcd dr)'

cach itCC(, unung Icxr

llt).+7 77.71

am( )un t duc and pavablc firr rhc penod of delar making pat mcnr (rvhich harr becn f,rd b t
rhc

u
appornrcd d")' during the vcar) but

.\ct,2006.
s,ithout adding rhc lntcrcst spccl tlcd under \licro Small and

mouot oI interest accrued and at the end of each

'l he amount oi further In fcrcst remaining due and Payablc ts\'cn in rhc succeeding vcxrs, unrrl such darc u,hen
the ln tcrest cl ucs ilS abor are actualll' puid thc small enterprise fr rr rhe PUr?()se disailos'irncr .ls I deductible

undcr secdon 2.1 of the \ficro Srnall and l\Iedium Enterprise Dcr.el.pment .\cr, 20t)6

amounts

t,f inrerest ln

k/
a
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O 'I'he (bmpanv has not adlanced or loaned or inr-csted funds to anv other pcrson(s) or enrin(ics), inclurling forergn entities (Intemediuies) ruith theunderstanding that the Inrermedian' shall:

(a) directlv or indirecdl lend or inrcst in other persons or entities identified in any manner u-hatsoever bv or on behalfofthe (itrmpanv (Ulumate
Benchciaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, securiry or the Like to or on behalf of the ulumate Beneficianes.

(r'r) 1'he Company has not received mv fund from anv person(s) or entrtv(ies), including foreign entities (Funding prry) with rhe undersranding (*,hether
recorded in wnring or othemise) that rhe Company shall:

(a) directlv or indirecdv lend or inrest in other Persons or entides idenufied in ant manner whatsoever bv or on behalf of the Funding partr, (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) pro'ide any guarantee, securiq' or rhe lilie on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(r'ii) The company does not hal'e any such transaction u'hich is not recorded in the books r:faccount that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in
the ta-t assessments under the Income-ta-t Act, l96l (such as, search or suney or anv other) relevant prolisions of the Income-ta-x Act, l9(r1.

(viit) The Company has not been declared wilful detaulGr bv anv bank or hnancial instrtution or Govemment or anv Govemment authorit, or other lender,
in acconlance uirh the guidelines on s'ilful defaulters issuj bv the Resene Bmk of India.

(Lt) The Company has complied with the number of lavers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 o[ the Companies Act, 2013 read v-ith rhe Companies
fi.estriction on number of Lavers) Rules, 2017 from the date of their implementation.

In the opinion of the Bord of Directors, all current and non-current assets including non{urrent loans, appearing in the balance sheet as ar respecri\.e
dates' have a value on realization, in the ordinary course ofthe company's business, at least equal t th. amourt aiwhich they are stated in the 6nancial
statements' In the opinion of the board ofdirectors, no prorisioo is required to be made against the recoverabiliry of these biances.

IndAs-l16"Itases"iseffecti*efrom01.04.20t9.ThecompanyhasShonTerm leasecontmctwithlrasetermoflessthan12months.Thecompaoyisrecogmzingthe

39 Figures olprevious veus have been regrouped,/reclassified s,hererer consirlered necessafl to make tlrem comparable nith that ofcurrenr yer

40 Figures have been rounded offto the nerest rupee in Lakhs.

For and on bchalfof the board ofdirectors of
Delanco Realtors Private Limited

\
\*

I'lacc:
Manpreet Singh
D[\ :01t6911797

(l)rrccto r)

Sandhva Singla
l)l\ : oltl.t93lt{-l

(l)trcctor)
Date: NIav 

.1,2025
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